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1. Name of Property

historic name Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increase Ill, Boundarv Decrease and Additional
Documentation

other names/site number N/A

2. Lociation

76-129 Biltmore Avenue, 64 Carter Street, 11-23 Grove Street 14-44 N French Broad Avenue,
street & number 12-25 S French Broad Avenue, and 167-184 Patton Aenue not for publication N/A
city or town Asheville _vicinity  N/A
state  Nortti Carolina code NC county Buncombe code 021 zipcode 28801

3. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1986, as amended, | hereby certify that this

X nomination request for detennination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering prooerties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60 In ,iiy
opinion, tne property X meets does not meet the National Register Criteria | recommend that this property be considered
significant nationally statewide X locally. ( See continuation sheet for additional comments.)

Signatuie of ue' Date ' N

Nonn Carolina Department of Cultural Resources
State or Federal agency and bureau

J
in my opinion, the propeity. meets . does not meet the National Register criteria. ( See continuation sheet tor additional
comments.)

Signature of commenting or other official Date

i State or Federal agancy and bureau

4. National Park Service Certification

1, hereby certify that this property is. Date of Action

entered in the National Register

See continuation sheet

_ determined eligible tor the

Naii. inal Register
See continuation sheet

_ determined not eligible for the

National Register

_ removed from the National Register

_ other (explain)-



Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundarv Increase llI,
Boundarv Decrease and Additional Documentation
Name of Property

5. Classification

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply)

Category of Property
(Check only one box)

X private building(s)
X public-local X district
public-State site
public-Federal structure
object

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

Asheville Historic and Architectural Multiple
Resources Area

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC/single-familv dwelling
DOMESTIC/multiple dwelling
DOMESTIC/secondary structure
RELIGION/religious facility
COMMERCIAL/business
COMMERCE/specialtv store
SOCIAL/civic
RECREATION/CULTURE/sports facility

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

Colonial Revival
Queen Anne
Tudor Revival
Commercial Style
Art Deco
Moderne

Other: Modern
No Style

Narrative Description

Buncombe Countv, North Carolina

County and State

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
21 0 buildings
0 0 sites
0 0 structures
0 0 objects
21 0 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
In the National Register

258

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

DOMESTIC/multiple dwelling
DOMESTIC/hotel

RELIGION/religious facility
COMMERCIAL/business
COMMERCIAL/professional
COMMERCIAL/specialtv store
RECREATION/CULTURE/music facility
VACANT/NOT IN USE

Materials
(Enter categories from instructions)
foundation Stone
Brick
Concrete block
roof  Asphalt
Metal
walls Wood/weatherboard
Wood/shingle
Stone
Brick
Stucco

Synthetics/vinvl
Cast concrete
Glass block
Wood/shingle

other

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval 1024-0018
(B-86)

United States Department of the Interior ,
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese 111,
Boundary Decrease and Additional Documentation

Section number 7 Page 1 Asheville, Buncombe County, NC

Section 7. Dexcription of Boundary Increase

The Downtown Asheville Higtoric Digtrict (NR, 1979), with aperiod of significancefrom the 1840s
to ca 1940, encompessesthe centrad budnessdistrict and dosdy assodated residential aress of Asheville,
North Carolina. Asheville raseto prominence inthe 1880s, following arailroad connection, and as the
largest city in westem North Caroling, it becamearegiona center of commerce, convaescence, and tourism.
The didtrict is composad of roughly thirty blocks of the city's commercid core dating from the late
ningteenth and early twentieth centuries, particularly the significant 1920s period. The Downtown Asheville
Higtoric District hes been enlarged twice before—first in 1989 and again in 1990. Boundary Increese| (NR,
1989), maore commonly known as the Biltmore Avenue Amendment, added two commercid buildings from
the 1920s that hed been obscured by anon-historic metd veneer. The historic integrity of the buildings was
revedled during their rehabilitation and remova of the faBade veneer. Boundary Increesel (NR, 1990),
referred to as the Ravenscroft Amendment, added a small group of residential structures (thirteen
contributing and four non-contributing) located on Church Stret, Hilliard Avenue, and Ravenscroft Drive.'

The Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increeselll enlargesthe existing historic
digtrict by including two aress of contiguous historic resources dating from ca. 1890 through 1961. The
boundary increese extendsthe existing district from its southem boundary aong Biltmore Avenue and to the
west on French Broad Avenue and Grove Street. The two boundary increese aress were likely not included
in the origind thirty-two-year-old district nomination due to their mix of early and mid-twentieth-century
resources

The Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increase |11, Boundary Deoresse and Additional
Documentation extendsthe period of significanceof the existing district from ca 1940 through 1961 ad
reflects the changing devdopment pattemns and evolving architectura styles through the middie twentieth
century. Following the failure of the Centrd Bank and Trust Company in November 1930, Asheville
witnessed an abmpt ed to its nearlyfifty-yearperiod of growth and good fortune. Asheville, like the rest of
the nation, sruggled through the Depresson, but with the added disadvantage of staggering municipal debt
that hed accumulated from civic building and infrastmctureimprovements diling the 1920s Despite the
hardships ad flat population growth, Ashevill€'s busnessdistrict was adleto recover, in part, dueto
deadily increesing tourism during the middle decades of the twentieth century. The resourceswithin the
boundary increese aress reflect the periods both before and after the crash. Resourcesin the boundary
increase dating from before 1930 include representative work of locally prominent architects William H.

' David R. Black, "Asheville Historic and Arciiitectural Multiple Resources Ared' National Register Nomination, 1979
(hereinafter cited a8 "Asheville MRA"). Martha W. Fullington, "Biltmore Amendment to Downtown Asheville Historic District"
National Regiger Nomination, 1989. Carolyn Humphries and Mary J. Hooper, "Ravenscroft Amendment to Downtown Asheville
Historic District" National Regiger Nomination, 1990. All three nominations held by the Survey and Planning Branch, Historic
Preservation Office, North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources, Raeigh.
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Lord and Charles N. Parker. Resources dating from after 1930 represent both modem design idees and the
influential rise of automobile tourism and commerce. A total of Six resourcesin the origina historic district
and two earlier boundary increese aress are contributing due to the extension of the period of significance
through 1961.

Tourism remained an important component of the local economy throughout the twentieth century
and was one of the sparksthat hdped to ignite Asheville's agonishing dovratown revitaization in the years
following the listing of the Downtown Asheville Historic District. The additional documentation addresses
svard agpads of the physica changes, both positive and negative, wrought by the reinvigorated downtown.
Two significant obstadesto completing this additional docimientation were thefrequentlygeneric
desriptions of buildings in the inventory list (e.g. "Two-story brick commercid building with corbelled
comice. Shopfront dtered.”) and the lack of complete photographic documentation. Asaresult it wasoften
difficult to determine what changeshad occurred a the time of the origina district nomination and what
changes may have occurred since listing. The author hes relied heavily on personad knowledge when thereis
insufficient written or visua documentation to determine when dterations may have occurred for specific
properties.

The Boundary Decrease involves asingle parcd & the northwest comer of Patton Avenue and Otis
Sireet onthe west Sde of thedigtrict. Originaly the Ste of the 1926 Pisgah Building, the smcture was razed
and the Ste deared for congtruction of the Veach-Bailey Federd Complex, asx-story office building
occupying nearly the ftiU block of Patton Avenue between Otis Strest and North French Broad Avenue. The
new building is mogtly Stuated outsde of the district boundary (avery small portion of the eest end of the
building extends into the comer parcel) and the dte of the demolished Pisgah Building sarves primarily as an
entrance plaza. The lass of the historic resource and redesign of the Site has subgtantially compromised the
integrity of thisedgeof the origind digtrict.

Changes to the dret paitern in acouple of aress have cregted discrepancies in the verba boundary
description of the original Downtown Asheville Historic District, athough the magp's boimdaries are clearly
ddineated. The westem boundary of thedigtrict from Patton Avenue is described in the verbal boundary
description for the existing district as following "the west property line of 129 Patton Avenue, which it
follows north acrass Wall Street, dong the rear wall line of the U.S. Pogt Office, to Post Street.” The
building a 129 Patton Avenue no longer dands and the sections of Wall and Pog drestsmentioned in the
nomination no longer exig. It isevident from the mgp where the original boundary line was located, and
following the boundary decrease to ramove the redeveloped dSte a 129 Patton Avenue, this portion of the
boundary will be drawn dong the 9de and rear walls of the former U.S. Pogt Office, which located a 100
Otis Sredt, to indlude that one building. In the vicinity of St. Lavrence Badllica, the verba boundary
description for the existing district should Sate that the boundary line follows Haywood Street to the west
(not eedt, as it iswritten) property lineof therectory. The boundary lineis later described as following North
Lexington Avenue to its intersection with Broadway, but this intersection hes been removed. The boundary
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logically followsthe north property line of the building a 120 N. Lexington Avenue, the north end of the
block, to comect the two Stregts

The inventory list for the Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increeselll, Boimdary
Decrease and Additional Documentation sarves severd purposes The first section of the inventory list
updatesinformation about certain properties within the origina Downtown Asheville Historic District and
Boundary Increeses 1 and |1, identifying any subgtantia changes (significanfly dtered, demolished,
rehabilitated, etc.) and clarifying, or possbly changing, their contributing or non-contributing Satus.
Updated property descriptions are arranged sequentidly by the inventory number assigned in the original
nomination. Fifteen resources have become contributing due to sympethetic rehabilitation projects, twenty
resources have become noncontributing due to detrimenta dterafions, and thirty-one buildings have been
lost due to demoalition.

The updated inventory list dso identifiesthirty-three resourcesthat were not described inthe original
inventory. Theseresources include buildings that were inadvertently omitted, buildings that were not
recognized as Sgparate Structures due to later venear materids, and buildings that have been congmcted
within the boundaries sncethe didtrict was listed. These newly inventoried resources are listed
dphabeticdly by srest name a the end of the updated inventory list because they were not assgned
inventory numbersin the original nomination. Included in this number are two outbuildings assodiated with
the Thomas Wolfe House (#19) and the Church of &t. Lawrence (#166) not described in the original
nomination, but they are inventoried herewith their primary assodiated resource for clarity.

At the time the Downtown Asheville Historic District nomination was prepared, a different system of
classifying resourceswas used, defining properties as Key Buildings, Contributing Buildings, Linking
Buildings, and Intrusons to the historic district. Key and contributing buildings are those resourcesintegral
to the visud character and historic significance of the district. Resources described as "linking buildings'
were those dmcturesthat had neither an especidly positive nor an especidly negative impact on the generd
characteridics of the digtrict, ether falling outsde the period of significance or having been dtered, but
generdly amilar inform, scale, and materidsto the contributing buildings inthe district. Intmsons ae
resourcesthat fall outsdethe district's period of significance, out of scale, or displaying non-historic
materids. Incurrent practice, the various categories have been simplified to ether contributing or non-
contributing datus Unless there have bean significant dterations impacting their historic integrity or
physica gopearance buildings defined as either key or contributing in the Asheville Dowaitown Historic
District are conddered to be contributing resources under the current classification system, and intmsions are
congdered to be non-contributing. All of the resourcesoriginally designated as linking buildings are ,
included in the inventory list with their current status. The inventory list of propertiesinthe existing
Downtown Asheville Historic District and subsequent boundary increeses are organized numericaly by the
inventory number assigned in the nomination or anendments

A contributing building, Ste, structure, or object addsto the historic assodiations, historic
architecturd qudities, or archaeologicd vauesfor whichthe digtrict is significant. Contributing resources
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add to the district's significance because they were present during the period of significance, reaeto its
documented historical significance, and possess historic integrity. A non-contributing building, Ste,

smcture, or object doesnot add to the historic assodiaions, historic architectural qualities, or archaeologica
vauesfor which the digtrict is significant. Non-contributing resources do not add to the district's
sgnificance because they were not presant during the period of significance, do not rdaeto the documented
historica significance, or no longer possess historic integrity due to adterafions, disturbances, or other
changes Alterations to the building's overdl form, massing, and scale, changing or obscuring the mgjority of
exterior materids, or the removad of character-defining stylistic dements negatively affect the historic
integrity of the district's resources.

The ssoond section of the inventory list contains entries for the resourcesin the Boundary Increese 111
aess of the Downtown Asheville Higtoric District. The list is organized beginning with the resources on
Biltmore Avenue on the south Sde of the district. The incresse areato the west of the district followswith
dregtsaranged dphabetically. 1nkegping with the organization of the original nomination, entries are
further organized with the eest Sde of north-south streets given first and then the west Sde; north sde first
for eest-weest dreets, then south. The new boundary increese aress consst of twenty-one contributing
resources and no non-contributing resources. The inventory entries provide the name, address, date(s) of
condruction, contributing or non-contributing satus, and abrief summary or each resource within the
digtrict. Each property is named after itsfirst, longest, or best knovm occupant or function during the period
of dgnificance. Congmction dates have been determined as accurately as possible by correlating information
from desd reseerch, tax records, Sanbom mgps, city directories, and other published sources

The third section of the inventory list contains the one entry for the Boundary Decresse.

Classficafion key:  NHL Nationd Historic Landmark
NR Individually listed in National Regidter of Historic Flaces
CB Contributing building
CS Contributing structure
NC-B Non-contributing building
NC-S Non-contributing stmcture

Demdished  Building isno longar ganding on itsSte
INVENTORY LIST - UPDATESTO EXISTING HISTORIC DISTRICT

1 Buncombe County Courthouse, 80 Court Plaza, 1928  * NR, C-B
Regoration of the polychrome ceilings in the main lobby was completed between 1990 and 1997 by
dudentsin the decorafive restoration program a Asheville-Buncombe Technica College. The new
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Bunacombe Caounty Detention Center was erected to the eadt of the courthouse in 194 and cormedted by an
endossd walkway across Davidson Sred a the rear of the courthouse All of the windows in the building
were replaced in 2008 with fully-functioning ener gy-efficent one-over-one sash. The replaceament windows
replicated the color of the original sash, which had bean painted beige and painted shut over the years
Stewark begen in early 2011 for afive-stor yoourtroom addifion located to the northeest of the courthouse
The new addition will be conneted to bath the courthouse and the detention center. Theforme jail in the
uppe fivedories of the building wasremoved in 2011.

2. Adheville City Hail, 70 Court Plaza, 1926-28 NR, C-B
An extengve exterior rehabilitation was completed in 1995, which included cleaning all of the
exterior masonry and the removal, repair, and replacemeant of theterra cottattile roof

3. Municipal Building, 100 Court Plaza, 1925-26 C-B

The building, which houses the city fire and police departments, was rehabilitated around 2000 and
included deaning and repair of the exterior masonry. A glasstunnd canopy supported on metd podswas
ingdled in front of the main round-arch entrance. The plaza infront of the building was redesgned. At the
rear, anew one-gory,flat-roof ,windowless mechanica room was constmcted with abrick retaining wall
extending to Eagle Strest and partially encloang the loading and service bays. An atached semicircular glass
canopy wes inddled on the reer elevation.

6. Legal Building, 10-14 SPack Square, 1909 C-B

A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1989. Exterior changes included cloth avnings over
window and entrance bays, replacement sorefront windows over panded bulkheads, and anew entrance
added in the canted comer bay.

7. Commerce Building, 1618 SPack Square, 1904,1989 ' C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1989, including restoration of the storefronts. A sed
frame and dass passageway was built aop the roof of the building, with adegp setback from the facade. The
pessageway provides aooess between the adjacent Westall and Legd buildings. A low baudrade and raised

pand with the name "1904 Commerce’ was installed above the comice line, replicating an origina sheet-
metd pargpet that had been removed.

8. Wedall Building, 20 SPack Square, 1925,1989 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1989, which removed amezzanine-level concrete and

aduminum faBede venear inddled in the late 1960s or early 1970s The storefront hes been modemized with

asngle-leaf wood door and plate-glass windows, but its configurafion remains similar to the origina design.
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9. Jackson Building, 22 SPack Square, 1923-24,1989 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1989, which removed amezzanine-level concrete and
auminum feBede vener inddled in the late 1960s or early 1970s

10. Commercia Building, 1 Pack Square SW, 1920s 1993 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1993, removing the rooftop sign and meta venesr from

the north devation. Rehabilitation of the building reveded that the smcture a 6 Patton Avenue, which was

sparady inventoried as #210, was apart of thisbuilding. A continuous comice, flat pargpet with concrete

coping, and soldier-course lintel above the storefronts extend aong the north eevation of the building. The

dorefront for the retail goecea 6 Patton Avenue hes been remodded with a succo bulkhead and pand

above the display windows. The northwest comer bay hes been stuccoed up to the comice line. Despite these

changes to the north devation, the removd of the non-historic vener better conveys the historic form and

aeof the building. Modifications to the secondary storefront are aminor portion of the building and

limited to the 9de and rear evations.

11. Commercial Building, 5Pack Square SW, 1890s ca. 1990 C-B

An extengve rehabilitation was completed around 1990 that removed non-historic venear from the
lower fabade and uncovered the second- and third-story windows. A flat-roof metal canopy supported on
dender podsthat extended acrossthe feBade wes replaced with acloth avming.

12. Commercia Building, 7 Pack Square SW, 1890s ca. 1990 C-B
An extendve rehabilitation was completed around 1990 that uncovered the transom above the
dorefront and the third-story windows. Thetransom lights were replaced with multi-colored art glass A flat-
roof metal canopy supported on dender pogtsthat extended across the faBade wias replaced with acloth

awning.

13.  Weden Hotd, 9Pack Square SW, 1880s ca. 1990 C-B

The building was rehabilitated in the early 1990s removing aflat-roof metal canopy supported on
metd podsthat extended acrossthe faBade The lower faBade was remode ed with arecessad entrance and
new gtorefront windows. Two round posts and alattice screen smulating aleaded-glass transom are located
in place of the origina storefront.

15.  JonesBuilding, 10 N Spruce Strest, ca. 1930 C-B
One-dory succo fabade ahered prior to the original didtrict listing. The exposed south and west Sde
devations digplay ashlar-face concrete block walls with pand-fa@ade block filling severd origina window
and garage bay openings. NN
PR N /\y/\ K



NPS Form 10-900-a ' . OMB Approval1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese |11,
Boundary Decrease and Additional Documentation

Section number 3 Page 7 Asheville, Buncombe County, NC

18.  AshevilleCommunity Theater, 35E. Walnut Street, 1972 NC-B
Listed in the original inventory as 35 N. Soruce Stret and classified as alinking™ building, the
theater, which was completed in 1972, islocated & 36 E. Wanut Street.

19. ThomasWoalfeHouse 48 N Spruce Street, ca. 1833,1999-2004 NHL, C-B
Owned and operated as a date historic dte, the Thomas Wolfe Memoria was severdly dameged by
firein July 1998. Approximately thirty percent of the original smcture and fifteen percent of theartifact
collection were destroyed by the fire. Intensve restoration of the house and artifact collection was completed
between 1999 and 2004. Restoration of the house was designed by Wingdon-Sdem-based architect Joseph K.

Oppamann.

Children's Playhouse, ca. 1900 NR, C-B

This one-gtory, front-gable frame smcture located on the south sde of the main house was
not described in the original district inventory, but was likely built around 1900 and moved to this
gtefrom the Wolfe family home on Woodfin Stredt.

20. Hayes-Hopson Building, 20-22 S Spruce Strest, ca. 1905, ca. 1920, 2010 C-B

An extensve rehabilitafion of the building was completed in 2009-2010, reversing anumber of
dterations mede in the intervening years when the building was used for county offices. The recent project
returned the building, especidly the feBade, doser to itsoriginal gppearance, but added new first- and
ssoond-gory windows on the north eevation.

23. Commerdal Building, 10N Market Stredt, ca. 1915, ca. 1980 C-B
The building was rehabilitated in the early 1980s The faBade remains largdly intact, but an open
darway entrance a the south end of the faBade has been endosed with alarge multi-pane windows.

24, Commerdial Building 22 N Market Street, ca. 1920, ca. 1990 C-B
This building was converted to a nightclub and entertainment venue in the 1990s. The faBade hes

bean remodded with the remova of the storefronts, which have been filled with rough stucco wall pands

The section to the south contains adouble-leaf entry doorflankedby plate-glass windows on either Sde. The

north section contains two plate-glass windows topped with leeded-glass fanlights. On the second-gory

above eech storefront, the large center window hes been replaced by athree-part picture window. The

flanking one-over-one saeh gppeer to be origina
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25. Commerdal Building, 24 N Market Street, ca. 1920s NC-B
The faBade hes been completdy remodded to the gppearance of mdticated sonework, replacement
snglelleaf entry within an arched opening, and removd of the storefront, which hes been replaced with a

largefive-partwindow topped by afanlight.

26. Commerdal Building, 33 N Market Stredt, ca. 1920s C-B

The inventory entry for this address describes the adjacent garage building located a@ 42 N. Market
Siregt (see newly inventoried resourcesbelow). The building a this location is a one-gtory polygona brick
dructurewith rugticated brickwork, articulated corner piers, rowlock string course, and ameta-frame glazed
gorefront congging of asingle-leaf entry door and flanking windows. The faBade of the diminutive mcture
is angled to address the intersection of North Market and Walnut streets.

27. Blomberg Garage, 48 N Market Strest, ca. 1940 Demoalished
The building was demolished ca 1990 and the Thomas Wolfe Memoria Visitor Canter was

congmcted on the Ste by the State of North Carolina.

28. Commerdal Building, 66-70N Market Street, ca. 1925, ca. 1990 C-B

The building was rehabilitated around 1990 with replacement one-over-one double-hung sseh
windows on the sscond story. The three pesked pargpets that distinguished the individual storefront bays
were removed, leaving aflat pargpet.

0. Sam's Lincoln-Mercury Building, 11 N Market Street, 1920s 1987 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1987. The original meta-frame industrial windows were
replaced with plate-glasswindows.

32. Commerdal Building, 2L N Market Street, 1920s, 2009 NC-B
An extendgve rehabilitation was completed in 2009 that removed the non-historic meta front and

remodded the building into an entertainment venue with an Art Deco-inspired faBade, replacement

gorefronts, sscond-gory balcony extending the full width of the faGade, and a recessad sscond-gory patio.

33 Newv Medical Building, 29 N Market Street, 1925 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed between 2001 and 2004 that included cleaning the exterior
and interior work.

35. Commerdal Building, 37 N Market Street, 1950s NC-B
Classfied as a"linking" building inthe origina inventory, the exterior hes been covered with stucco

sncethe origind digtrict listing.
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37. Commercial Building, 55 N Market Street, ca. 1925, ca. 1985 NC-B

Dameged by firein 1979, the building was rehabilitated around 1985. The storefront transom was
covered with opeque pands. False wood paneling, fluted pilasters, and blind semi-circular transoms were
goplied to the second-gory window group.

3. Commercial Building, 61 N Market Street, ca. 1940, ca. 1990 NC-B
Formerly #65, the building wes classified as a"linking" smcture in the original inventory. The
faBade gopears to have been remodded with succo and replacement display windows.

40. Commercial Building, 712 N Market Street, ca. 1950, ca. 2000 NC-B
Classfied as a"linking" stmcture in the origina inventory, the building gopears to have bean
rehabilitated around 2000 with replacement storefronts, atached decorative sted 1-beam band, flat-roof entry
canopy upported by metd tie-rods anchored on the faBade, and replacement second-gory plate-glass

windows.

41. Commercia Building, 73 N Market Street, ca. 1930, ca. 2005 NC-B
Remodded modern storefront with tall narrow single-leaf solid door andfranslucentwindow pands
withfrostedsgnege

43. Young Men's Inditute, 21 SMarket Street, 1892 NR, C-B
Sold with protective preservafion covenantsin 1980 and extensively and carefully rehabilitated in the
early 1980s as the YMI Cultural Center.

44, Jackson Building Annex, 8 SMarket Street, 1925,1989 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1989 that deaned the exterior masonry and uncovered the

firg-story gothic-arch windows.

45, Commercial Building, 12 SMarket Street, 1970s Demalished
Demalished ca 1986 for constmction of Biltmore Avenue Parking Garage.

46. Commercial Building, XX SMarket Street, 1970s Demalished
Demalished ca 1936 for condruction of Biltmore Avenue Parking Garage

49, Commercial Building, 46 SMarket Street, 1970s NC-B
Classfied as a"linking" building in the origina inventory, the smcture datesfrom after the end of
the period of sgnificancefor the district. # # % .4
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50. Commerdal Building, 48 SMarket Street, 1920s C-B

Origina metd-frame factory windows on sscond story were replaced with plate-glasswindows. The
gorefront gopears to have been replaced as well. Despite the dterations, the building retainsits overal form,
fenestration pattem, and exterior faBade materid.

51. Plaza Theater, 2 Biltmor e Avenue, 1922 Demadlished
Demdlished in the late-1980s for constmction of Pack Place, amulti-fimction culturd arts center.

52. Commercial Building, 4-6 Biltmore Avenue, 1920s Demadlished
Demdlished in the late-1980s for constmction of Pack Place, amulti-fimction cultura arts center.

53. Commercia Building,4-8 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1934 NC-B

During the demoalition of the Flaza Theater and constmction of the new Pack Place facility and
adjacent commerad buildings, the faBade and front section of this two-story brick commercia building—
formerly 6/2-8/2 Biltmore Avenue—were saved. The building isjoined a the rear and on the second story to
the new commercid smcture built immediatdy south a 12-14 Biltmore Avenue (sse newly inventoried

resources below).

A, Commercial Building, 16-18 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1934 Demadlished
Demalished in the late-1980s during constmction of Pack Flace, amulti-fimction cultura arts center,
and anew commerdd building was erected on the Site.

55. Commercial Building, 32 Biltmore Avenue, 1952 C-B
Classfiedas a"linking" gtructure in the origina inventory, thisintact, plain brick commercid
building wes built in the early 1950s

56. Fine Arts Theater, 36 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1940,1996-1999 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed between 1996 and 1999 that included exterior repairs and
cleaning and interior improvements.

57. Commerdial Buildings, 38-48 Biltmore Avenue, 1923 C-B

This group of four structures wes listed in the inventory as an individual entry. A certified
rehabilitation project was completed on 48 Biltmore Avenue between 2002 and 2004. Locd architect Jim
Samsd desgned the certified rehabilitation of 38 Biltmore Avenue, which was completed in 1991. A
certified rehabilitation of 40 Biltmore Avenue was completed between 1999 and 2001.
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58.  Adheville Hotd, 52 Biltmore Avenue, 1891, 2008 C-B

A lengthy certified rehabilitation project, completed between 2001 and 2008, converted the building
to Oxford Flace Condominiums. The storefronts have been dtered and the upper-story windows are
replacement one-over-one double-hung saeh.

59.  Adler Building, 1 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1887, ca. 1990 C-B
The building was rehabilitated around 1990. The work included rebuilding the two gabled pargpets,
which were removed in the mid-twentieth century.

0. PalaisRoyal, 5 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1913, 2010 NC-B
The building hes bean rehabilitated severd times since the original nomination, including new
gdorefronts and removd of the Stepped gable. The mod recent storefront modifications occurred in 2010.

61. Commerdal Building, 7 /2 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1915, ca. 1990 C-B
The building was rehabilitated around 1990 and the non-historic metal storefront was removed to
reved awood-frame storefront.

62. Commerdal Building, 913 Biltmore Avenue, 1927 C-B
The rounded centrd pargpet was repointed and the centrd storefront remodded in early 2011 during

the preparation of this nomination. The non-historic art-glass transom was removed from the centrd

gdorefront and replaced with plate-glasstransoms. In addition to repointing the pargpet, the cag-concrete date

pand wes replaced with anew pand bearing the date"1927."

63. Fain's Thrift Sore, 15 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1946, ca. 199 C-B
Classfied as a"linking" gructure in the origina inventory, the building was rehabilitated ca 1999.

4. Rice-White Building, 19 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1890, 2006-2008 C-B

The deteriorated andfire-damagedbuilding was extensvely rehabilitated between 2006 and 2008,
converting the two upper gories into ten goartmentswith two retails goeces on the first sory. The local firm
Rowhouse Architects designed the rehabilitation project, which included two new projecting storefronts with
degply recesssd entrances bassd on the originals documented in historic photographs. Rehabilitation work
adso induded subgtantid brick repair and repointing and replacement one-over-one windows on the upper
dories

67. Commerdal Building, 31 Biltmore Avenue, 1920s Demalished
The building was demolished in March 2011.
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68. Commercdal Building, 35 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1880 Demadlished
The building was demolished around 1990 and the lot is vacant.

69. Daley Furniture Co. Building, 37 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1890 C-B
A rehabilitation project was completed in 2002 that replaced the meta-frame storefronts with wood-
frame windows and doors and converted the first dory to a retaurant.

70. Commercial Building, 39 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1885 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed in 2001 thet replaced the storefront with wood-frame

display windows, removed non-historic transom veneer, and replaced the second-gtory  windows with two-

over-two double-hung sseh.

71 Commercial Building, 41 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1885 Demadlished
The building was demoalished in the 1980s The Site isnow used as small courtyard and coffee shop
housad in a parked double-decker bus

73. Commerdial Building, 22 Broadway Strest, 1912 C-B
The non-historic meta faBade was removed to reved original second-gory detals fenesfration

paterns

74. Commercial Building, 24 Broadway Strest, 1912 Demadlished
The building was demolished ca 1990.

76.  JenkinsBuilding, 30-32 Broadway Street, 1912,1996-1998 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed between 1996 and 1998, and the storefronts were replaced

with modem recessed entrances and display windows over concrete bulkheads.

77.  Windsor Hotd, 34-38 Broadway Stredt, ca. 1910 C-B
The building, which hed become aboarding housein the late twentieth century, was purchesed in

2007 with the intent of rehabilitating the smcture as a boutique hotel. The rehabilitation project ddled in

2010 and the vacant building remains awork in progress.

79.  Abrogas Moators Building, 52 Broadway Street, ca. 1913, ca. 1990 C-B
The building wes rehabilitated around 1990, and the storefronts were replaced with modem recessed
entrances and display windows over concrete bulkheeds.
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82. Service Station, 64 Broadway Street, 1920s 2011 NC-B
Formerly 62 Broadway, the building wes rehabilitated in the spring of 2011. The replacement front
window was removed and the faBade remodded with arecessad entrance. A glass-block sdewindow hes

been covered with awood pand.

83. Commercial Building, 66 Broadway Street, 1920s C-B
The dtered storefront is succo with plate-glasswindows and areplacement panded wood door. The
sscond-gory windows are replacement: one-over-one double-hung sash.

85. Commerdal Building, 913 Broadway Strest, ca. 1915, ca. 1990 C-B
The storefronts were dtered around 1990, leeded-glass transoms were removed, and the second-gory
windows were replaced with one-over-one double-hung saeh.

86. Commerdal Building, 15 Broadway Street/24 N Lexington Avenue, ca. 1915, ca. 2000 C-B

The building was rehabilitated in the early 2000swith the remova of non-historic metd feBade. The
upper sorieswere converted for resdentia use and the second- and third-story faGade openings contain
French doorsand metd railings. The stucco faBade features pand sframingthe recessed meta-frame
gorefront and abanded comice. The building isthree sories on Broadway Street, but continues through the
fiall depth of the block and isfour stories on North Lexington Avenue. The materia changes to the Broadway
Sireat faBade, even with the removd of the non-historic metd veneer, are incompatible with the district but
the building hes sufficient overdl integrity with the intact feBade a 24 North Lexington Avenue.

8. Commercial Building, 19 Broadway Strest, ca. 1905, ca. 1990 C-B

The building faBede was partialy covered by anon-historic metal veneer that was removed in the
1990s to reved the full extent of the building'sfaBade. The two Sorefronts are both dtered, and second-gtory
windows on the south portion of the building are boarded.

88. Finkdgtein's, 21 Broadway Strest, ca. 1890, ca. 1985 C-B

The storefront wes dtered in the 1980s and wood venesr on the lower faBade was removed to reves
narrow, vertica pands on the sde supports. The faBade isidentical in desgn to the adjacent building (23
Broadway), which islargely intact with an original recessed-entry storefront, pands bulkheeds, double-lesf
doors, transoms and arched two-over-two sscond-gory windows. The windows here are replacements

Q. Commerdal Building, 25 Broadway Street, 19205 2007 C-B
The building was rehabilitated in 2007 and the transom venear removed. n
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91. J.L. SmathersBuilding, 27 Broadway Street, 1927,2009-2010 C-B
The building weas rehabilitated in 2009-2010 with replacement sscond-story casament windows.

9. Commerdial Building, 29 Broadway Street, 19205 2009 C-B

Classfiedas a"linking" ssmcture in the original inventory, the building was extensvely remodded
in 2009 with modern replacement windows on the north sde elevation and arooftop terrace. The cedar-
shingle faBade nated in the original inventory was removed previoudy and the storefront is asimple recessed
entrancewith digplay windows on stucco bulkheeds.

93. Adheville Club, 33-37 Broadway Street, 1916 Demolished
The building was demdished in the early 1980s and ussd as a privatdy-owned surface parking lot.

A. Commercial Building, 39 Broadway Strest, ca. 1905, ca. 1990 C-B

The building was rehabilitated around 1990 with wood veneer removed from the storefront and
enfrance athough some vener reamains in place around the display window. The upper-story windows were
replaced withfixed-paneglass

%. Earle Building, 47-49 Broadway Street, ca. 1915, ca. 1990 C-B
The building was extendvdy rehabilitated around 1990 with cloth awnings added to the Storefronts.

97. Commercial Building, 53 Broadway Street, 1920s, 2005 C-B
The building gopears to have undergone an interior rehabilitation around 2005 that resulted in an
devator or gairwell shaft rising above the pargpet.

%8 Commercial Building, 57 Broadway Strest, 1920s C-B

Entered as apair of buildingsin the origina inventory with the address 55 Broadway, the two
dmctures herewere built separatdy and later shared aretail business on the first sory. The inventory entry
for the building on the north Sde, 59 Broadway, is listed below with the newly inventoried resources. The
gorefront of thisbuilding, 57 Broadway, hes been remodded sincethe district listing.

Q0. Enter prise Machine Company Building, 67 Broadway Street, 1912, ca. 1990 C-B
The building was rehabilitated around 1990. The faBade windows were restored and the storefronts

dtered. A one-dory concrete block addition extendsto the south and displays decorative brick and glass

block patteming. A surface parking lot located on the south Sde of the building hes been covered with asted

roof canopy.
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100. Warehouse, 73 Broadway Street, 1940s ca. 1990 NC-B

Classfied as a"linking" building in the original inventory, this former warehousewas remodded
around 1990 and converted to offices connected with the adjacent building a 67 Broadway. The origina
garage bay door was removed and replaced by storefront windows over a stucco bulkhead, and the second-
gory windows were replaced. The building hes no visible exterior enfrance.

101. Commerdial Building, 71 Broadway Strest, ca. 1915, ca. 2005 C-B
Appearing in the origina inventory as 75 Broadway, the building was rehabilitated in the 2000swith

arenodded sorefront and entrance.

102, EaglesHome, 77 Broadway Street, 1914, 2004-2010 C-B

Since 1985 the building hes housad the sudios of local redio station WCQS. In 1994, the
performance dudio was renovated, and between 2004 and 2010, the first story of the building hes been
completdy rehabilitated, primarily on the interior.

103. Pode& Company Building, 79-83 Broadway Street, 1920, ca. 1995 C-B

The building wes rehabilitated around 1995. The storefronts were remodeled. Second-gtory windows
on the 9de and rear devations were replaced with eight-over-one saeh. The basamant interior was
rehabilitated for resdentid or office use and the basement-leve windows were replaced with single-light,
eght-over-one, and tweve-over-one sseh.

104. Commerdcial Building, 91 Broadway Strest, 1950s n Demalished
Demalished around 1987 and asmal warehouse built on aportion of the Ste.

106 Commercial Building, 93 Broadway Street, 1920s ' Demoalished
Demdlished around 1987 and a amall warehouse built on a portion of the Ste.

106. Commercial Building, 9 Broadway Strest, ca. 1920 C-B
Classfied as a"linking" gtructure in the original inventory, this pand-face concrete block building

on a done foundation was erected around 1920. The faBade features aregplacement single-leaf entry flanked

by paired replacement windows. Portions of the pargpets gopear to have been rebuilt wdth later block.

100. Commercial Building, 107 Broadway Street, 1920s NC-B
The gorefront hes been completely covered with plywood sheething and possibly dtered. The
primary entranceis now located a the rear on 112 N. Lexington Avenue.
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110. Meadows Building, 109 Broadway Street, 1926, ca. 2002 C-B
The building was rehabilitated around 2002 and the second-dory faBade veneer was removed.

112 Commercial Building, 28 N Lexington Avenue, 1950 C-B
Thisbuilding was classified as a"linking" smcture in the origina inventory. According to Sanbom

maps, it was condructed around 1950. It remains largdly intact.

116. Commercial Building, 62-64 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s C-B
The building hes bean rehabilitated with recessed storefronts and sted [-beam lintels.

117. Commercial Building, 68 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s 2010 NC-B

The building was rehabilitated in 2010 with anew tall, wood-frame storefront, meta-frame overheed
door on the 9de eevation opening onto adining patio, and replacement one-over-one windows on the

second-dory. S . .

118. Commercial Building, 70 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s ca. 2000 C-B
The building was rehabilitated with replacement storefronts and converted to arestaurant. The garage

bay hes bean filled with double-leaf entry doors, sddlights, and fransom.

120. Commercia Building, 74-78 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s C-B
The building hes been extensvely remodded with dtered storefronts and replacement windowson

the ssocond and third stories.

121. Commercial Building, 80 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s C-B

The building hes been extensvely remodded with two dtered storefronts and replacement windows
on the ssoond dory. The storefront a the north end of the faBade gppearsintact, but the south storefront hes
diagona wood sheething above and below the display windows. The center recessed bay hes diagond wood
sheathing covering the transom. The second-dory windows gppeer in groups of four above the storefronts
and agroup of three abovethe centra entrance. The replacement windows arefixed-sashplate glasswith
wood sheathing filling the goace above the sagh in the window opening.

122,  Commercial Building, 82-84 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s ca. 2000 C-B

Two of the building'sthree bays gopeer to be little changed from time of the origina nomination, but
the north bay was subgtantialy remodded into aresdentia unit around 2000. The storefront has been
replaced by asolid succo wall with arched double-leaf and single-leaf wood entry doors. The second- and
third-story windows are replacement one-over-one saeh and abacony hes been added on the sscond story.
The cloth awvning that shdtersthe bacony is supported on decorative metd pods.
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123. Commercia Building, 8690 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s 2011 C-B
The second-gtory windows on the north section of the building were replaced during the preparation
of this nomination.

124. Commercial Building, 92-94 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s Demoalished
The building was demalished around 1990 and the Site (present address 2 Woodfin Sfregt) isveacant.

126. Commercial Building, 100 N Lexington Avenue, ca. 1930 C-B
Described as a plain two-story brick warehouse in the origind inventory, the building isa

commercid dructure with an dtered storefront, recessed entrance bay, replacement plate-glassdisplay

windows, and two 2-light metd-frame diding windows on the upper story. A replacement single-leaf door a

the north end of the faBade actessad the second story. The faBade hes been dtered with stucco on the lower

faBade and adecordive ceramic tile pands between the two floors.

127. Commercial Building, 106-108 N Lexington Avenue, 1920s C-B

The gorefronts a the south end of the building have replacement doors and a boarded-up window.
The mortar joints on the upper faBade gppear to be consderably deteriorated. A low, doping frame dructure
hes been added to the roof, possbly to divert water avay from the faBade and deteriorating pargpet.

120. Commercial Building, 116 N Lexington Avenue/111 Broadway Streset, ca. 1919 NC-B

Thistwo-gtory building was listed inthe origind inventory as 112 N. Lexington Avenue, but the
current address isrecorded as 116 N. Lexington Avenue. The sdmcture extendsthe full-depth of the block .
and presantsaone-dory feBade & 111 Broadway, which houses the principal business on the upper sory.
The Broadway devation is one-gtory with areplacement storefront, recessed single-leaf entranceflankedby
paired windows, ded I-beam lintel carrying the fial width of the storefront opening, and acorbeled comice.
The two-gtory Lexington Avenue devation features asingle garage bay and two sgparate sngle-leaf doorson
the lower level. A large upper-gory opening frames arecessad dining patio.

130. Commercial Building, 120 N Lexington Avenue/113 Broadway Street, ca. 1948 C-B
This building wes classified as a"linking" smcture in the original inventory and described as a one-

dory cinder block shop. The building istwo stories on Lexington Avenue and one story on its Broadway
eevation (eddress 113 Broadway). The current business occupying the building is listed with the 120 N.
Lexington Avenue address. The Lexington Avenue eevation is brick and displays replacement plate-glass
windows and areplacement single-leaf entry door. The three upper-sory windows are replacement diding
szeh. The one-dory, plain brick eevation on Broadway condsts of an origina recessad entrance storefront
with wood-frame display windows and atransom carrying the full-width of the storefront. The exposed north
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eevationiscdnde block and an devated wood deck, accesssd from asingle-leaf entry in the exterior wall,
was added on to the building in the early 2000s

131. Commercia Building, 27 N Lexington Avenue, ca. 1927, ca. 1980,1984 C-B
The building was rehabilitated in the early 1980swhen long-time downtown busness Tops For

Shoes moved into the building. The lower faBade was restored and the second-gory  windows were replaced.

In 1984 an dley on the south sde of the building was endased for additional Soece The new wing features

metal-frame plate-glass windows sat within corbelled frames with soldier-course lintelsand sills.

134. Commercial Building, 35 N Lexington Avenue, 1910 NC-B
Storefront openings endosad with pattemed brick infill and ametal overhead garage door.

135.  Commerdial Building, 39 N Lexington Avenue/23 Rankin Avenue, 1910, 2009-2010 C-B

The building was extensvely remodded in 2009-2010 and converted to a retaurant and hostd. The
dorefronts were remodded and recessed. Large metd-frame windows can be raised to open up the insst
dining patio; the center bay opens as the entrance. A flat metd canopy is supported by tie-rods anchored to
the faBade. The upper-story windows are replacement six-over-six double-hung sseh that replicate the
originas.

136. Tyler Building, 4963y2 N Lexington Avenue/43 Rankin Avenue/65 W Walnut Street, 1928 C-B

This large sructure hes storefronts on Lexington Avenue, Rankin Avenue, and Wanut Street; the
main entrance, however, gopears to be on the upper dory a the angled comer a the intersection of Rankin
Avenue and Wanut Street. The Rankin Avenue eevation was partialy rehabilitated in 2009 with modem
metal-frame windows and doors. Some of the multiple Lexington Avenue storefronts may have dso been
remodded dnce the district waslisted.

137. Commercial Building, 10 SLexington Avenue, ca. 1915, ca. 2007 C-B
Formerly 2 S Lexington Avenue, the building was rehabilitated ca. 2007 with few exterior
dterations.

138. Ndand Moator Co. Building, 32 SLexington Avenue, ca. 1926 C-B
The building's large wooden garage doors have been removed and the storefront bay covered with
vinyl sding. One glazed-and-panded wooden overhead door remains in place as the center of the storefront.

139. Sawyer Mator Co. Building, 15 SLexington Avenue, ca. 1925 Demoalished
Demoalished in the late 1980sand site ussd for a surface parking |ot.
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141. Commercal Building, 10 Church Street, 18%5 n Demalished
Demoalished in the early 1980s L *

143. Commerdal Building, 14 Church Street, 1900, ca. 1986 NC-B

The building was rehabilitated in the mid-1980s and the modem metal-and-glass storefront was
replaced by brick infill with plate-glass windows and asingle-leaf entry.

144. Commercial Building, 16 Church Street, 1930s, 2009 NC-B
The building was rehabilitated in 2009 and converted to offices with two residentia unitson the
ssoond gory. The amooth succo faBade was covered with pebbledash and the sscond-gtory windows were

replaced.

145, CommercialBuilding, 18 Church Street, 1895,2010-2011 C-B

An extensve rehabilitation was completed in 2011 during the preparation of this nomination. The
project included converting the first floor of the building to asmdl theater with resdentia units on the upper
dories. Thelater infill brick faBade was removed from the first sory to reved original cagt iron columns and
the torefronts were replaced with asimple recessed entrance and display windows. The second-gtory
windows are replacemeant one-over-one double-hung sseh.

147.  First Presbyterian Church, 40 Church Street, 1884-1885,1902,1951,1968, ca. 2000 C-B
The church building wes remodded and enlarged around 2000 after desgnsby loca architect John

Rogears A three-gtory brick-and-concrete addition to the southeest of the sanctuary helped to simplify

intema circulation by adding acentrd three-story foyer entered from the south. New offices, fellowship hall,

kitchen, dassrooms, and circulation aress (dlevator, Sair tower, halways) wereincluded in the addition. A

ten-gpace concrete parking deck was dso congmcted above the surface parking lot & the reer of the church

adong South Lexington Avenue.

149. AshevilleFederal Savings& Loan Assodiation Building, 11 Church Street, 1922,2003-2006 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed between 2003 and 2006, removing the exterior veneer

pands and returning the building to its 1922 gopearance. Asheville architect Ronald Greene designed the

origina building by remodeding and combining two ca 1900 gmctures with asone skin. The two-story

Neodasscd building features an angled entrance comer with Doric columns in antis, pedimented entrance

with modillions, dassca entablature and dentil comice, and one-over-one windows topped by latticed

transoms.
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151. Adon Apartments, 61 Church Street, 1928, 2001-2002 C-B
A certified rehabilitation project was completed 2001-2002 and the building converted to

condominiums. Afive-storybrick devator and sair tower was added a the west end of the building. A wood

dedk and bracketed flat-roof canopy are located on three Sdesof the tower addition above the roof of the

origina building.

152. 1.0.0.F. HaU, 5 Ravenscroft Drive, 1928,2008 C-B
A three-dory devator shaft and dair tower was added a the reer of the building in2008. The
addition isfinishedwith light Succo accanted by decorative banding that extendsthe projecting brick
ocoursesof the origina building. A new exterior enfrance into the basement level was ingtaled on the north
eevation and condgs of a double-leaf door, sdelights, and transom shdtered by a corrugated metd shed-
roof canopy supported by metd tenson rods anchored in the exterior brick. The interior was dso
rehabilitated with the remova of a dropped acoudticd tile ceiling in the main lodge room and restoration of
the origina ceiling. New office partitions have been ingtaled on the lower stories of the building a the reer.

153 Ravensoroft School, 29 Ravensor oft Drive, 1840s, 1980s NR, C-B

Threstened with demoalition in 1979, the building was sold with protective covenantsto anew owner,
who undertook a certified rehabilitation project between 1980 and 1982. During the rehabilitation a
twentieth-century frame addition was removed from the reer of the building and a one-storyframeaddition
was removed from the north eevation. A new two-story hip-roof stuccoed addition with a projecting gebled
bay was congmcted a the reer.

154.  Asheville Tdephone & Tedegraph Company Building,
25 Rankin Avenue/4dl N Lexington Avenue, 1903,2000-2002 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed on the whole building in 1985. A sscond certified
rehabilitation project was completed on the third floor residentia unit between 2000 and 2002. The third
floor was converted to a desk modern gpartment with acantilevered bacony on the reer (eet) dlevation
overlooking Lexington Avenue. .,

155.  Wachovia Bank Building, 1 Haywood Street, 1970, ca. 2000 NC-B
The building was classified as a"linking" structure in the original inventory. Exterior remodding in

the early 2000s added three-story window baysto the previoudy solid exterior walls of the building, which

was desgned in 1970 by Anthony Lord of Six Assodiates. The window bayswere ingtaled on the south and

north devations.
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156. Lerner's Shop, 15 Haywood Street, ca. 1937,2009 NC-B

Classfiedas a"linking" building in the origind inventory, this ssmcture was erected around 1937 for
Lemer's, aclothing sore. Documentary photographs show the exterior adomed with white pilagters,
architraves, and single second-dory display windows that gave the building a Colonia Reviva-inspired
gopearance The building was extensively remodded in 2009 and reopened as aretail sore in 2010. Part of
the rehabilitation removed the concrete pands covering the original faBade, which wereingtdled in 1968, but
the faBade and exposad south elevation were further dtered with anew recessed entrance, large sngle-pane
ssocond-dory windows, and two 2-gtory windows added to the south elevation.

157. Commerdal Building, 1921 Haywood Street, 19205 ca. 1990 , NC-B

Thebuilding was rehabilitated with the remova of the non-historic meta faBade and converted to
resdentia units on the upper sories abovefirst-storyretail. The original faBade had been dtered prior to the
installation of metd venesr in the late 1960s or early 1970s The faBade digplays remodeed storefronts,
replacement one-over-double-hung windows, and triple-leaf glazed doors on the second story opening onto
metal baconies

158. Woodworth Store, 25 Haywood Street, 1939, 2001 C-B
Interior and exterior commercid rehabilitation desgned by Rogers and Associates and executed by
Scatt Sirkin, contractor were completed in 2001. The project included restoration of the Art Deco faBade.

159. Pdllock'sBuilding, 31 Haywood Street, 1929, ca. 1990 C-B

This commercid building, described individually as 27 Haywood Street in the original inventory, is a
portion of a larger building. Thefull building, erected in 1929, includes the former 27 and 29 Haywood
Street, now renumbeared as 31 Haywood Street. The complete building was rehabilitated around 1990 and the
glazed metd-pand faBade removed from the south portion of the faBade. The succo faBade of this one-story
dmcture features molded sorefi-ont bays, replacement metd-frame storefront windows and recessed
entrances, cartouches with garland svagsin the upper faBade, and vertical pands a the ends of the faBade
with acarved floral motif The name"Pollock's" gopears in script across the cartouches. The south section of
the building hes bean converted to apedestrian arcade cormecting Haywood Sfreet with the Rankin Avenue
Parking Deck, buih in 1988.

160. Commerdal Building, 29 Haywood Streset, ca. 1950 Part of C-B (see #159)
This commerdd building, described individually, is not a sgparate tmcture, but the north bay of the
building inventoried as 27 Haywood Street (present 31 Haywood Street; sse above), which was covered with
alaer metd faBade The complete building was rehabilitated around 1990. The stucco fabade of this one-
dory sructure feetures molded storefront bays, replacament meta-frame storefront windows and recessed
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entrances, cartoucheswith garland swagsin the upper faBade, and vertical pandsa the ends of the feBade
with acarved floral motif The name"Pollock's' gopears in script aoross the cartouches.

161. Bon MarcheDepartment Store, 33-35 Haywood Street, 1937, ca. 1990 C-B

The pattemed metd faBade added in the 1970s was removed around 1990 when the building was
rehabilitated. The origina blonde-brick Art Deco faBade remains intact and features cast-concrete pands
surrounding the storefronts, geometric patteming in the vertical window bays and stlepped pargpet, resded
goandrds and nine-light windowswith alarge centrd pane.

162.  Loughran Building, 43 Haywood Street, 1923,1998-2003 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed between 1998 and 2003 with retail goaces on thefirst story
and besamant leves (opening onto Walnut Street) and condominiums on the upper sories.

163. Elk's Home 55 Haywood Street, 1914, ca. 1995 C-B
The building was extensvely remodded inthe early 1990s, removing the non-historic metal veneer
from the faBade. The storefronts were renodded with acentrd entrance bay flanked by digolay windowsthat
wrgpped aroimd one bay on the south elevation. The sscond gory featuresa projecting balcony and three
front and ane sde ssgmentd-arch baysframinga recessedfrontwall. A dentil stringcourse and comice
wrgparound the faBade and south evation. The sgpped and pesked pargpet is capped with a cagt-concrete
coping. A brick and concrete devator and sar tower was congmcted a the rear of the building to facilitate
aooess to the residentia  units on the upper stories. Loca architect Jim Samsd designed the rehabilitation

project.

164. Cadanea Building, 35y2-63 Haywood Street, 1921,2002 C-B

A certified renabilitation project was completed in 2002 and the upper stories converted to
condominiums. The interior resdential goece and exterior courtyard rehabilitation were designed by Petti
Glazer of Glazer Architecture and executed by RPF Congtmction. The storefront at the north end of the
faBade hes stucoo surrounds with modem sculpturd relief embelishments that are out of character with the
building, but overal the building retainshigh degree of integrity.

165. New Pack Memorial Library, 67 Haywood Street, 1978 NC-B
An extendve interior and exterior renovation was completed in 2010, which included minor exterior

dterations.

166. Church of St Lawrence, 97 Haywood Street, 1909 NR, C-B
The two smal domes that cgp the faBade towers were clad with copper sheathing around 1991,
replacing the origind colored tiles. In the early 1990s the original double-leaf entrance doors were removed
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due to weethering and some deterioration; these doors were placed into sorage rather than restored. The
replacement doors were unsuitable, both historically and stmcturally, and soon removed. The church
ingaled anew st of carved wood oek doors in 2003, with pand designed pettemed after the origina doors.
A nomination of additiona documentation was submitted in 2009, listing the church for national
sgnificance.

Garage, ca. 1950 C-B

This one-gory, two-bay, front-gable garage located to the reer of the Church of St Lawrence
was not described in the original district inventory, but was likely built around 1950. The smple
frame Sructure rests on a conarete block foundation and is clad with vertical wood siding. The roof
gopeas to be covered by thin metd sheats The garage bays are acoessad through  glazed-and-panded
wood overheed doors, and asingle-leaf solid wood door entersthe garage from the eet Sde. A shed-
roof concrete-block wing on the west elevation is entered through asingle-leaf meta door and
digplays meta-frame windows.

167. MilesBuilding, 14-20 Haywood Street, 1925, 2008 C-B
New goreronts and sculptural meal-dad awnings ingalled in 2008.

168. (former) Bon Marche Department Store, 1 Battery Park Avenue, 1923,1985-1986 C-B

Formerly listed as 30 Haywood Street, a certified rehabilitation was completed in 1985-1986 and the
building converted to a hotel. The flat cantilevered canopy was removed and afront storefront bay replaced.
At the north end of the Haywood Street devation, the two storefront bays were replaced and the second-gtory
fabade venear was removed. The hotel underwent renovation in 2003.

169. HaywoodBuilding,38-58HaywoodStreet, 1917,1986-1989 C-B

A certified rehabilitation was completed between 1986 and 1989 for offices and retail. A three-story
atrium adjoining the former Bon Marche Store to the south was added to centraize the interior circulation
betwean this building and the newly converted hotdl (sse #168 above). A parking deck was added & the reer
(west) of the building. Storefronts were remodded and the upper-story windows were replaced with one-
over-one sseh.

170. Haverty Furniture Building, 60 Haywood Street, 1928, ca. 1985 C-B

The building wasrehabilitated around 1985 and converted to condominiums on the upper stories.
The storefronts were altered with a modem recessed entrance and display windows over marble-veneer
bulkheads. The transoms are frosted to resembleleaded glass. The second- and fourth-story fa9ade windows
are replacement six-over-one sash. / .
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171 Nichds Building, 62-66 Haywood Street, 1930s C-B
The building was rehabilitated in the mid-1980s wdth renodded storefronts.

172. Garage, 68 Haywood Street, 1930s ‘ NC-S
The dructure is currently vacant and dated for demolition due to ssmctura deterioration. The
"dynamic two-bay, framed horizontal window strips on the second level™ were removed a some point in the

late 1980s0r early 1990s

174.  Ticket Booth, SW corner Haywood S. and Page Ave,, ca. 1970 Demadlished
Thissmal gructure served as the attendant's booth for a surface parking ot and was demalished in

the early 1980s

175. Commercial Building, 21-27 Page Avenue, ca. 1943 C-B
The building hes been rehabilitated for retail and office use, including restoration of the black
vitrolite 9gn above the torefronts and remodeling of the storefronts. The lower faBade consgs of a Succoed

wall punctuated by two retail sorefrontswith recessed entrances @ the ends, three center bay's containing
double-leaf doors, and afourth entrance containing asingle-leaf door. The black-and-white-sfripe meta
awning that hed bean in place for the pedt forty yearswas severdy dameged by heavy show in the winter of
2010 and subssquently removed. Despite the significant dterations to three of the storefront bays, the
building retains itsoverdl integrity including the two end storefronts and its important stylistic dements on
the upper faBade.

176. Commercial Building, 29-31 Page Avenue, ca. 1949 C-B

The storefronts have been replaced with similar metal-frame display windows andfransomsdivided
into four sectionsingead of the original two. The original second-gory faBade windows have been replaced
with one-over-one double-hung sseh.

177. Commercial Building, 33-35 Page Avenue, ca. 1958 C-B
The storefronts have been dtered with replacement meta-frame display windows and cag-concrete

pands

178. Professonal Building, 52 Page Avenue, 1928 Demadlished
The building was demolished in 2006.
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179. Battery Park Hotd, 1 Battle Square, 1923-1924, ca. 1985, 2003 NR, C-B

The hotel operated until 1972, but the building was unoccupied and deteriorating a the timeof the
origina digtrict nomination. In the early 1980s the Asheville Housing Authority rehabilitated the hotd for
affordable senior housing. A certified rehabilitation was completed in 2003.

180. Carolina Power and Light Company Building, 8 O. Henry Avenue, 1965 NC-B

The building wes classified as a"linking" smcture in the origina inventory. Designed by Stewart
Rogers of Sx Assodiates, the new CP& L office building opened in May 1965. The building hes bean
remodded dnce its congruction, subgtantidly compromising the integrity of the original design.

181 Agheville Citizen and TimesBuilding, 14 O. Henry Avenue, 1938-1939 C-B
The original ded-frame windows were removed and replaced in 1992 with therma windows that

goproximete the glazing pattern of the originals.

182,  Southern Bell Tdephone Building, 24 O. Henry Avenue, 1948 C-B
Classfied as a"linking" smcture in the original inventory, the building was erected in 1948 and

later enlarged to the rear and one story added to the building.

184. U.S. Pog Office and Courthouse, 100 Otis Street, 1929-1930 C-B

The building remains intact despite the constmction of asubgtantiad multi-level plaza and parking
dmcture to the north and west of the building and the erection of the modern V each-Bailey Federa Complex
to the south in 1990.

186. Carolina Apartments, 68 N. French Broad Avenue, 1918 C-B
The building was dameged by fire and extensvely rehabilitated in the early 1990s.

187. J. A. Wilson Building, 13-15 Eagle Street, 1924, 2002 C-B
The building was rehabilitated around 2002 with little ateration to the exterior.

191. Commercial Building, 14 Eagle S, 1920s Demadlished
Demoalished in the late 1980sfor constmction of the Biltmore Avenue Parking Deck.

192. Commercia Building, UYi Eagle Street, 1920s Demadlished
Demoalished in the late 1980sfor congtruction of the Biltmore Avenue Parking Deck.

193, Commercial Building, 16 Eagle Street, 1915 Demadlished
Demoalished in the late 1980sfor constmction of the Biltmore Avenue Parking Deck.
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1. KressBuilding, 21 Patton Avenue, 1926-1927 C-B

A certified rehabilitation project was complete between 2001 and 2006. The project included
extendve work on the exterior to restore the terra cotta work. The storefronts were replaced wath modem
meta-frame tinted-glass units and tall transoms. The upper dories were converted to condominiums and the
windows were replaced with one-over-one sseh.

195. Commerdal Building, 25-27 Patton Avenue/57 College Street, 1900, ca. 1985 C-B

Classfied as a"linking" gtructure in the original inventory, the building was extensively rehabilitated
with the remova of its sheat metd faBade and marquee. The second-story  windows gppeer to be
replacaments. Renovation of the retail goece a 27 Patton Avenue was in progress during the preparation of
this nomination.

196. Commercial Building, 31 Patton Avenue/55 College Street, 1900, ca. 1985 C-B

Classfied as a"linking" smcture in the original inventory, the building was extensively rehabilitated
with the removd of its shest meta faBade and marquee. The storefront was remodeded into alarge multi-
light digplay window with arecessad entrance st within an arched opening.

198. J. H. Law China & Cutlery Store, 35 Patton Avenue/51 College Street, 1900, ca. 1940,2003 C -B
A certified rehabilitation project was completed in 2003. Renovations included an extensve
remodding of the storefronts.

199. TheForum, 39 Patton Avenue, 1920s 1932 C-B

Classfiedas a"linking" dructure in the origina inventory, the building was extensvely rehabilitated
in 1982 with the remova of non-historic feBade materias, cregtion of an interior atrium, replacement
dorefronts, and the reopening of the upper-gory windows. Renovations were designed by loca architect
Danie Johnson.

202. Commerca Building, 85 Patton Avenue/26 Wall Street, 1920s C-B
The "imitation Colonia shopfront” noted in the origina inventory has been replaced by aremodded
dorefront with arecessed single-leaf entrance, narrowfransoms,and tiled bulkhead walls.

208. Shdl Service Station, 121 Patton Avenue, 1928,1988 NC-B

A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1988, converting the building to aretail goreand
endosing the four sarvice bays Aroimd the sametime atwo-gtory L-shgpe building was built surrounding
the exigting structure on the north and eest Sdes. The new building adjoinsthe service dation on the reer
(north) and features a meta-clad gable roof, succo exterior, and open two-tiered corridors and stairwells on
the et block.
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210. Commerdal Building, 6 Patton Avenue, 1920s *o Part of C-B (see #10)

This commerad building, described individually, isnot asaoeratestmcture but aportion of the
contributing building & 1 Pack Square SV (see #10 above) that was covered with alater metd falade. The
building was rehabilitated in the early 1990s and the metd faBade removed. The exterior of this one-story
brick building hes bean partially covered with succo and the storefront windows and recessed entrance have
been replaced.

211. TheLeader Department Store, 12 Patton Avenue, 1890, ca. 2008 C-B
Rehabilitation completed ca 2008 with the second-gtory converted to | oft-style gpartments.

214. Grand Central Hotd Annex, 22 Patton Avenue, 1836 Demolished
Demolished in the early 1980s and the Ste devdoped as asmall city park.

215. Commerdal Building, 28 Patton Avenue, 1890 Demoalished
Demolished in the early 1980s and the Ste deveoped as surface parking lot.

216. Imperial Theater, 32 Patton Avenue, 18%5 Demalished
Demoalished in the early 1980s and the Ste devdoped as surface parking lot.

217. Commerdal Building, 38 Patton Avenue, 1890 Demoalished
Demoalished in the early 1980s and the Ste devdoped as surface parking lot.

218. Sondley Building, 44 Patton Avenue, 1891 Demalished
Demoalished in the early 1980s and the Ste developed as surface parking lot.

219. Drhumor Building, 48 Patton Avenue, 1895,1994-1996 C-B
An extendve rehabilitation was completed between 1994 and 1996 and the building was converted to

law offices.

220. S& W Cafeteria, 56 Patton Avenue, 1929, 2008 NR, C-B

After dtting vacant for anumber of years the building was rehabilitated in the late-1990s esa
meeting and reception goece and then anight club. The building was sold again in 2007 and constmction
began on new, upper-gory resdentia unitsthat are desgned to be screened by and st back from thefront
pargpet. The one-and-a-hdf sory addition to the building ismostly obscured by the pargpet and is
condructed with concrete pands and ametd-clad sde-gable and pargpet roof
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221. Commercia Building, 60 Patton Avenue, ca. 1965 NC-B
Classfied as a"linking" sructure in the origina inventory, the building gppeers to have been erected
in the mid-1960s, after the end of the period of significance for the district.

222, Bankof Asheville, 63 Patton Avenue, 1972 NC-B
Classfied as a"linking" smcture in the origind inventory, the new set-back bank building was

completed in Decamber 1972, after the end of the period of significance for the district.

224.  Classc Building, 76-78 Patton Avenue, 1909, 2002 C-B

The building was rehabilitated in 2002 with remodded storefronts, restoration of the upper faBade
detalls, and rehabilitation of the second-dory offices. The project was designed by Patti Glazer of Glazer
Architecture and executed by RPF Congruction.

225, First Union Bank, 8 Patton Avenue, 1965,2008 NC-B

The origina building desgned by Henry Gaines of Six Assodaes sat vacant for five years before it
wes radically redesgned into a desk modem stmcttire beginning in 2007. Rehabilitated as Capita Center,
the brick and concrete exterior was removed from the building and replaced with aglass curtainwall on half
of the fabade the eedt portion of the faBade features recessed cormgated meta wallswith curving baconies
projecting over the sdewak. Horizontal window bands over cormgated meta spandrds have been added to
the 9de devations above the roofs of the adjacent buildings. A penthouse and mechanicd floor were added
to the roof and clad with corrugated metd. Loca architect John Rogers designed the rehabilitation project,
which was completed in 2008 and congmcted by Beverly-Grant.

226. Piedmont Building, 86 Patton Avenue, 1925,1999-2001 C-B
A certified rehabilitation project was completed between 1999 and 2001. The interior was
rehabilitated for condominiums thet interconnect with the adjacent sfructure a 90 Patton Avenue.

227.  Moskin's Building, 90 Patton Avenue, 1920s, 1999-2001 C-B
A certified rehabilitation project was completed between 1999 and 2001. The interior was

rehabilitated for condominiums that interconnect with the adjacent smcture a 86 Patton Avenue. The

gorefront was uncovered and possibly remodded. The succo surrounding the storefront was in place a the

time of the origina digtrict listing.

228. Commercial Building, 92 Patton Avenue, 1915, ca. 1990,2010 C-B
The building wes extensively rehabilitated around 1990 with aresidence on the second story ebove a
first-story shop. The storefront was completdy remodded, transoms uncovered, and twelve-over-one



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese |11,
Boundary Decreese and Additional Documentation

Section number 7 Page 29 Asheville, Buncombe County, NC

windows added on the second gory. The torefront was remodded again in 2010 during the preparation of
this nomination.

229, Adgheville Overland-K night Building, 205 College Street, 1923, ca. 2000 C-B
The building was rehabilitated for county offices around 2000 and an upper-story block added to the

two-story rear wing.

230. Commerdal Building, 19 Cdllege Street, ca. 1925, ca. 2000 C-B

The building was rehabilitated for county offices around 2000. Remova of the non-historic meta
front and overhanging roof reveded afour-bay brick faBade with soldier-course lintelsover threebays a
sgmentd-arch opening on the west end bay, and acorbelled comice. The sorefronts have been dtered, but
the building more dosdy resamblesits early 1920s gppearance than the 1970sdateit was assgned in the
origind inventory.

231. LewisFuneral Home 189 Codllege Strest, 1922 Demadlished
The building was demoalished in Decamber 2010 to accommodate proposed additions to the county
courthouse

232.  Garage, 130 College Street, 1930,2010 NC-B

This former garage was classified as a"linking" structure in the original inventory. It has been
extensvely rehabilitated twice snce the origind digtrict was listed, including a2010 remodeling of the
dorefronts and replacement windows.

233. Blanton's Busness College, 126 College Street, 1920s 1987,2011 C-B

A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1987. The building was extensvely rehabilitated again
during the preparation of this nomination and completed in 2011. The brick infill storefront was removed and
replaced with a panded wood storefront, two recessed double-leaf entrances, and two meta-frame multi-
light windows that can open completely for an interior patio.

234.  Sawyer Building, 122 Cdllege Street, 1920s, 1999 C-B
A certified rehabilitation completed in 1998-1999 likely included replacement of the storefronts.

236. Technical Building, 108 College Strest, 1910 Demadlished
Demoalished around 1990 and used as a surface parking |ot.
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237. Parking Garage, 16 Broadway Street, 1967 NC-S

Classfied asa"linking" dructure in the origina inventory, this privately-owned parking geragewes
built for tenants of the Northwestern Bank Building on Pack Squarein the mid-1960s, after the end of the
period of sgnificance for the district.

237a. Commercial Building, 5 Broadway Street, 1920s C-B

Origindly inventoried with multiple addresses reflecting its severd small shops, the building hes
bean rehabilitated severd times for various dining establishments and converted into asingle space The
angled comer entrance is now the main entry and the storefront windows are replacements. Two solar arays
were indaled onthe roof in 2007.

238. Commercial Building, 56 Cdllege Street, 1900, ca. 2000 C-B
The building was rehabilitated around 2000 with remodded storefronts and replacement Sx-over-one

double-hung saeh on the ssoond and third Sories.

239. Imperial Life Insurance Company Building, 50 College Street, 1925, ca. 2000 C-B
The building was rehabilitated around 2000 with replacement storefront windows and the remova of
paint from the comice and pargpet to reved incised |lettering on the comice.

240. Tench and Francis CoxeBuilding, 20-24 College Street/4 Wall Street, 1900,1930s, ca. 2000 C-B
The building was rehabilitated around 2000 with the replacement of the storefrontsand sscond-gory
windows. The metd |ettering on the upper faBade spelling the name of the building was removed.

241. Medical Building, 16-18 Callege Street/6 Wall Street, 1898, ca. 1990 C-B

The building was rehabilitated in the early 1990s and the degp, recessed entrance bay was remodded
with anew st of wood-frame entry doors,fransoms,and sidelights over pands positioned doser to the
feBade wall.

242. Commercial Building, 12 Cdllege Stret/8-10 Wall Stredt, ca. 1910,1986-1988 C-B

Classfiedas a"linking" in the origina inventory, the building underwent a certified renabilitation
betwean 1986 and 1988 that uncovered and restored or remodded the storefronts. The second-gtory windows
are replacemant one-over-one double-hung saeh. ,

243. Commercial Building, 810 Cdllege Stret/12-14 Wall Street, ca. 1910 C-B
Classfied asa"linking" building in the origina inventory, the three-story brick building hes
moderatdy dtered storefronts and ceramic tile framing thefirst-storyentrances and windows.
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244. Commercial Building, 46 College Street/16-18 Wall Street, 1905,1986-1983 C-B
A certified rehabilitation was completed between 1986 and 1988 with little dteration to the exterior.

245. CommercialBuilding, 5W Walnut Stredt, ca. 1917,2008-2009 C-B

Listed as 1 Wadnut Strest in the origina inventory, the building was extensivey rehabilitated in
2008-2009 before reopening in early 2010. The storefronts were rehabilitated utilizing some historic
materia. The upper-gory windows are replacement nine-over-one double-hung saeh. A one-gtory, hip-roof
frame penthouse was built on the roof of the building, st back from the pargpets.

246. Commercia Building, 9W Walnut Stredt, ca. 1917, ca. 1995 C-B
Rehabilitated around 1995, the storefronts were substantially redesigned with four of six bays now

recessad and supported by panded wood pogts The other bays feature asingle-leaf glazed-and-panded

entry, Sddights, square transom lights, and panded spandrds and bulkheads. The second-gtory windows are

replacement plate-glass and one-over-one windows.

248.  Flatiron Building, 10-20 Battery Park Avenue, 1925-1926,1986-1987 C-B

A certified rehabilitation was completed in 1986-1987 with little dteration to the exterior. A meta
fire excgpe and baconies were indaled on the west elevation, in the air goece above the adjacent two-story
building, for Sories 3-8.

249. Commerdal Building, 22 Battery Park Avenue/19 Wall Street, ca. 1930 C-B

The building hes been rehabilitated severd times snce the original district listing, primarily interior
renovations for new busnesses A 19/0sera Sgn and later awning have been removed from the faBade and
the west digolay window hes bean replaced. Wood shingles, present a the time of the original nomination,
have been removed from the bulkheeds and replaced by decorative glazed tiles.

250. Hursey-Enman Building, 26 Battery Park Avenueg’2l Wall Street, 1926, 2000-2003, 2008 C-B

A certified rehabilitation project was completed between 2000 and 2003, and renovations for a new
businessin 2007-2008. Both the rehabilitation project and later renovations were designed by Glazer
Architecture of Asheville.

252. Commercial Building, 36-38 Battery Park Avenue/35 Wall Strest, ca. 1955 C-B
Second-gtory factory windows were replaced with four- and six-light windows in the 1990s.

254,  Commerdal Building, 48 Battery Park Avenue, ca. 1950 Demadlished
The building was demalished in the mid-1980s for the constmction of the city-owned Wall Stregt

Parking Garage
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255. J. C. Penney Department Store, 21 Battery Park Avenue, 1950 Demolished

J. C. Penney occupied thar onegory building here until 1989 when the gore moved to the Asheville
Mall on Tunnd Road. The building good vacant until 2002. It was purchased by alocal devdopa and
demdished for the congmction of a new seven-gory retail, office, and condominium gmcure

256. John Carroll Store, 33 Battery Park Avenue, ca. 1970 NC-B
Classfied as a"linking" building in the original inventory, the smcture datesfrom after the end of

the period of significance for the digtrict.

257. GroveArcade, 37 Battery Park Avenue, 1926-1929, ca. 1998-2002 NR, C-B
The City of Asheville acquired the Grove Arcade from the federal govermment, which had occupied

the building snce World Wer 11, in 1997. The Grove Arcade Public Market Foundation, a not-for-profit

corporation, oversaw acertified rehabilitation of the building. Jeff Dalton of Rowhouse Architects designed

the interior and exterior restoration and interior residentia rehabilitation, which was executed by Weaver

Cook Congmction Compary. The Grove Arcade reopened in 2002 as apublic market with restaurants,

shops, offices, ad forty-two gpatments.

Newly-inventoried resources within the boundaries of the district since listing

Twenty-One Battery Park, 21 Battery Park Avenue, 2006 NC-B

Desgned by Asheville architect Danie Johnson, Twenty-One Battery Park is a sevenrdory mixed-
use building with thirty-nine resdentid units and five commercia goaces Erected on the Ste of the former J.
C. Pary Sore the concrete building risesfrom atwo-gtory brick bese with broad segmentd-arch  openings
on the second-gtory. The residentid dories (3-7) are marked by long cantilevered baconies and acentrd
shaft of windowsrising through eech devation.

Commercial Building, 12-14 Biltmore Avenue, 1933 NC-B

Thisthree-gtory, flat-roof brick building was congmcted in 1988 and incorporated the surviving
portions of 6Y2S/2 Biltmore Avenue (sse #53 above) into the north end of the smcture. The new building is
designed with an open passagewvay between the twofirst-storycommercid goecesto an interior courtyard.
The faBade isfinishedwith black ceramic tile framing the centrd opening, lower walls, and comers, as well
a6 decorative vertical bands and square insarts on the upper faBade. Thefirst-storywindows and glazed
interior walls of the open pessegeway are meta-frame saeh. The ssoond and third dories are illuminated by
horizontal window bands
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Commercial Building, 59 Broadway Street, ca. 1920, 2006 C-B

This building was described in the original inventory as one resource with the adjacent smcture, 57
Broadway, which was built severd yearsearlier. The three-story brick commercid building festures comer
piers with recessad vertica pands, donesills, and arecessad pand in the upper faBade. The orefront is
replacement metd-frame plate-glass windows, entry isfrom the north Sde eevation. The building was
partially renovated in 2005. A sscond-gory studio window was replaced by a group of five one-over-one
windows and transoms. The third-story windows, which are topped by painted flat brick arches are dso
replacemeant one-over-one sseh.

Warehouse, 95 Broadway Street, 1985 NC-B

Located near the intersection of Broadway and Woodfin sreets, this unassuming one-story concrete-
block warehouse was built in 1985. The building presents blind walls to the two adjoining sreets ad it is
aocessed from the interior of the block. A single-leaf glazed entry door and single panewindow are shdtered
by an agphdt-shingle pent roof A single loading bay and tmck well are located a the southwest corner of
the building and the bay is entered through ametd overheed door.

Commercial Building, 15 Carolina Lane, ca. 1915 C-B

Onegory brick commercid building wath aprominent sepped pargpet, faded painted Sgnege, and
asymmrica faBade openings. A large ssgmentd-arch opening located a the center of the faBade has been
infilled with plywood shesthing and single-leaf sSix-panel door. A garage bay to the south hes aflat lintel and
agazed-and-panded wooden overhead door. A ssgmentd-arch door opening on the north sde of the faBade
contains asngle-light-over-three-pand door with apainted sign reading "OFFICE" on the brick arch above
the door. A segmentd-arch window opening between the central opening and office door contains a meta-
frame indugtrid window that gopears to be alater replacement because the upper portion of the openingis
infilled with brick.

Commercial Building, 17 Carolina Lane, ca. 1940 ' NC-B
Smdl one-dory brick commercid building with areplacement storefront. The new storefront, st

within brick corner piers and a narrow brick lintel, condsts of modem wood sheathing, a solid single-leaf

metd door, one-over-one double-hung saeh, amulti-light window, and arow of five plate-glass transom

windows. The transom above the entrance contains awindow air-conditioning unit. The two-story reer

(west) devation is congructed of brick and sructurd clay tiles.

Commerdal Building, 25 Carolina Lane, ca. 1920 C-B
Onegory brick commercid building with aremodded storefront, corbelled comice, Sepped dde
pargpet, and segmentd-arch openings on the exposad south sde eevation. The storefront, located benesth a
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ded I-beam lintel, condstsof asingle-leaf door topped by a six-over-six double-hung transom and four six-
over-9x double-hung seeh above abrick kneewall. A recessed brick pand islocated in the upper faBade.

Commerdial Building, 27 Carolina Lane, ca. 1920 NC-B

One-dory brick commercid building with replacement storefront and arecessaed brick pand in the
uppe faBade. The windowless storefront, located benesth aged I-beam lintel congsts of modem wood
sheathing and areplacement single-leaf door.

Commercial Building, 29 Carolina L ane, ca. 1920 NC-B
One-dory brick commercid building with a partially remodded storefront, located benegth a sted |-

beam lintel, and arecessed brick pand in the upper faBade. The north half of the storefront consgsof a

panded wooden garage door that is no longer operable, and the south portion hes been covered with

plywood paneling and contains areplacement single-leaf door.

Commercial Building, 31 Carolina Lane, ca. 1920 C-B
One-dary brick commercid building with athree-bay storefront, sed 1-beam lintel, recessed brick
pand in the upper faBade, and a corbelled comice. The storefront is compased of central double-leaf wood
doorsand paired six-light transomsflankedon ether sde by four-light display windows, paired six-light
transoms, and beeded board kneewalls. The entry doorsare nine lightsover asingle pand and diagond stile.

Commerdal Building, 33 Carolina Lane, ca. 1920 C-B
One-dory brick commercid building with apartially renodded storefront, sed I-beam lintel,
recesssd brick pand in the upper faBade, and acorbelled comice. The storefront is composad of asingle-leaf
solid wood door to the south and three plate-glass display windows over a beeded board kneewall. The enfry

and display windows are located beneeth three sets of paired six-light transoms.

»

Commerdial Building, 35 Carolina Lane, ca. 1920 C-B
One-dory brick commercid building with a partialy remodded storefront, sted 1-beam lintel,
recesssd brick pand in the upper faBade, and acorbelled comice. The north bay of the storefront remains
intact with afour-light display window, pared six-light transoms, and a beeded board knee wall. The south
bay contains asingle-leaf wood door topped by ablind transom with openings for two vent fans. The center
portion of the storefront condgs of two blind pandsand narrow transoms.
Commerdial Building, 37 Carolina Lane, ca. 1920 NC-B
One-dary brick commercid building with aremodded storefront, sed I-beam lintel, recessed brick
pand in the upper faBade, and a corbelled comice. The storefront isinfilled with wood sheething and



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese 11,
Boundary Decrease and Additional Documentation
Section number 7 Page 35 Asheville, Buncombe County, NC

contains asingle-leaf three-light-over-three pand entry door, three-part leeded-glasswindow, and a plate-
dlass picture window.

Commercia Building, 39 Carolina Lane, ca 1915 NC-B
One-dory brick commercid building with aremodded storefront, brick lintel, recessed brick pand

in the upper faBade, and acorbeled comice. A centrd single-leaf six-light-over-three-panel door is framed

by board-and-batten sding andflankedby fixed twelve-light wood-frame windows. The origina brick knee

wall onthe north part of the storefront remains exposed.

Commercia Building, 41 Carolina Lane, ca. 1915 NC-B
One-dory brick commercid building with aremodded storefront, brick lintel, recessed brick pand

in the upper faBade, and a corbdled comice. The storefront condssof wood sheathing, infill garage bey to

the south, replacement single-leaf entry door, and atransom of tranducent glass panes

Commercia Building, 43 Carolina Lane, ca. 1915, ca. 1920 CB

One-gary brick commercid building with a corbelled comice, terra cotta coping, segmentd-arch
openings, sonefoundation, and atwo-gtory brick addition a the rear. The faBade conssts of replacament
double-leaf entry doors andfiankingone-over-one and six-over-six wdndows of various szes. Sculpturd iron
grilles have bean ingtdled over the windows. The exposed three-bay north eevation condss of a single-leaf
one-light-over-two pand door near the faBade and two six-over-six double-hung saeh to the rear. Segmentd-
arch openingsin the foundation have been infilled with concrete. The rear addition, built around 1920,
features a Sepped pargpet facing Woodfin Street, a central segmenta-arch opening on the second story, ad
cadt conarete lintels over thefirst-storyopenings. On the north eevation, the first-story opening is partially
bricked in and containsa single-leaf wood entry door st within arecessed concreteinfill pand. First-story
openings on the west eevation have been endosad with brick. The windows are four-light casement and
three-over-one double-hung saeh.

Commercia Building, 17 Church Street, ca. 1915, 2005 CB
Due to areplacement faBade indaled in the 1970s, the building was considered to be part of the
adjacent Asheville Federd Savings & Loan Association Building (sse #149) a the time of the Nationd
Register nomination. Subssquent rehabilitation in 2005 reveded the original, handsome exterior of the
building, which was built as a sgparate smcture around 1915 and housed a doctor's office and cabinet shop.
The two buildings, however, ae connected intemally. The two-gtory brick commercia building features
well-detailed brickwork, round-archfirst-storyopenings, and cast concrete sills. The narrow faBade condds
of alarge arched doorway opening with two single-leaf glazed-and-panded entry doors and transoms
sparated by abrick pilaster. A cagt conarete lintel formsthe bese of the arched pand  above the entrances,
which containstwo smdler arched pands, one over each door. The arches are formed by rowlock courses
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The andler arches are filled with brick in FHemish bond, but the larger arch contains brick in abasket weave
pattem with an insat circular brick dement. The window opening to the south of the entrance is recessed
dightly and contains aone-over-one double-hung sseh, arched transom, and soldier-course brick arch, wdth a
rowlock-course arch framing the outer edge of the bay. On the second story, three one-over-one sash under
jack arches are sgparated by brick pands and rest on acontinuous cagt concrete sill. The comice, which
wrgps around the faBade and south devation, ishighly articulated with brick arches and corbeled impost
blocks beneeth the entablature and comice. Projecting brick keys are positioned above the pesk of each arch
with arowlock comice and brick dentilsforming the comice. The six-bay south devationis composad of
first-story arched window openings like that on the faBade with single one-over-one windows above. One
bay, indicating the location of the interior stairwell, festures smdler one-over-one ssshwdth flat lintels.

During the rehabilitation of the building, atwo-story reaer addition was congmcted with abresk in
the cornice and narrow inset pand to distinguish between the original block and the addition. The addition
exhibits Smilar details as the original building, dthoughit islessomate initsbrickwork and employs
atached cornices a the first and sscond dories to visually sgparate the two blocks. The addition contains an
inset comer entrance with gated openings and thefirst-storycomice projects & the rear (west) to form a
cantilevered canopy for the drive-through banking station.

Commercial Building, 68 College Stredt, ca. 1906 C-B

Located a the northeest comer of College Sfreet and North Lexington Avenue, the two-story brick
commercid building dates from ca 1905, but the feBade was dtered with the application, during the early
1960s, of aducco vene finished to smulate ashlar blocks. The design of the ducco venear dso uggests
that the bays on the Lexington Avenue dde (west) have been cut a a later date, but the building's west
eevation gopearsto be the original exterior wall and exhibits the same Flemish bond brickwork, ssgmenta
and flat arch window and door openings, and dde entrance with transom as the et dlevation. A one-bay
digplay window adso wrgps around the comer to address the Sde dtredt.

The building is not identified in the inventory for the downtown disfrict. The building, which
originaly hed the addressss 16-18 College Stredt, first served as a sdoon before converting to a grocery and
lunch counter a the front with arestaurant in the rear part of the building accessed from Lexington Avenue.
By 1925, the building was used for offices, tailor, and barber shop, and in recent years hes housed severd

andl retall shops

Biltmore Avenue Parking Deck, 12 Eagle Street, 1989 NC-S
A three-gory reinforced-concrete parking deck extending the full depth of the block from Biltmore

Avenue eet to South Market Sirest wias congmcted in 1989. Stair towers a the northeest and northwest

corners have glass curtain walls and are located adjacent to the vehicular entrances. A lower Sory on Eagle

Stregt contains arow of retail shops.
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Darling Shop, 37 Haywood Street, ca. 1940 C-B

Thistwo-gtory commercid building was previoudy hidden behind the meta faBade of the Bon
Marche Depatment Store at 33-35 Haywood Street (sse #161 above). The Darling Shop, awomen's clothes
dore, was located here from 1940 to 1960, and in 1961 Bon Marche purchased the building and remodded it
a6 the Slore For Men. Removd of the fasefrontreveded the building to be two individual dmctures. The
Modemne faBede is composad of a polished sonevenear begewith agranite-veneer upper feBade. The
gorefront condsts of a recessad double-leaf glazed doorflankedby single-pane display windows. The single
sscond-dory window is alarge, centrd glass block pand with two vertical muntins. Rehabilitation of the
interior and converson to offices beganin 2002.

Commerdal Building, 102 N. Lexington Avenue, ca. 1938 C-B

Not included in the origind inventory, thistwo-story brick commercid building wes likely
consgdered to be part of the adjacent smcture & 100 N. Lexington Avenue (Sse #126 above). Thetwo
buildings have a continuous flat pergpet topped with aterra cotta tile coping, but aparty wall dividesthe two
buildings behind the pargpet; this building aso gppears to have bean built a few years after the neighboring
dmcture. The storefronts gopeer to be largely intact with wood-frame display windows and transoms. A
angleleaf entrancein the south storefront looksto be a:iiw and is surrounded by wood shegthing

f

covering the transom and siddlight. The ssoond—story wi our-vertica-lights-over-one double:hung
saeh gppearing in pairs. t > & ‘
Condos, 12 S. Lexington Avenue, 2006 ’ NC-B

Desgned by the Asheville firm of Camille-Alberice Architects, this seven-gstory mixed used building
contains two retail goeces onthe first sory, forty-three resdentia units, and forty-nine parking soeces The
building is desgned with a concrete block first sory and smcturad ements. The four sories of residentia
units are finished with brick and gopear as four projecting bays on the facade. The baconies and two-story
penthouse level have a concrete exterior.

Commerdal Building, 34 S. Lexington Avenue, ca. 1925, 2011 C-B
The building was described in the origina inventory as ane sfructurewith the adjacent building a 32
S Lexington Avenue (sse 138 above), which was condructed after this building. The two-story brick
commercid building features apanded feBade, Sepped pargpet, and six-over-six double-hung ssehonthe
ssoond gory. The storefronts, which congst of a large garage bay and flanking single-leaf entranceswith
transoms and a pair of digolay windows a the south end of the faBade, have been remodded, particularly the
garage bays and entrances. The wood-frame display windows rest on apaneled wood bulkheed and ae
topped by athree-light transom. A continuous rowlock lintel carries acrossthe storefronts. The second-gtory
windows are divided into two groups of four with continuous rowlock sillsand soldier-course lintels are
positioned over recessad brick pands A full-width cagt-concrete pand is located abovethe windows. A
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gable roof extends behind the pargpet. The exposad south eevation ispartially covered with succo and
contains both origina elght-over-eight double-hung windows and replacement single-light saeh; the first-
gdory window openings haveflat brick arches For mogt of its exigence the building hes been assodiated with
fransportation-related busnesses

Garage, 42 North Market Street, ca. 1940 C-B

Destribed in the original inventory as one building with the small smcture & 38 N. Market Street
(s #26 above), this one-tory brick and concrete block building was ussd for auto repair and welding shops.
The building presantsabrick faBade dong Market Street with aflat pargpet cgoped by terra cottatiles. A
large centra garage bay is entered through a panded wood overhead door; two single-leaf entrances and five
window openings have bean covered. The eadt and north devations are exposad concrete block pierced by
metal-frameindustriad saeh that have bean painted black.

Thomas Wdfe Memorial Visitor Center, 48 North Market Street, 1996 NC-B

Built on the gte of the old Blomberg Garage (see #27 above), the Thomas Wolfe Memoria Visitor
Canter isaone-dory adminidrative and exhibit facility for the Old Kentucky Home, a dateowmed historic
Ste assodaed with the childhood of Asheville native and nationally prominent author Thomas Wolfe. The
historic home, which sandsto the eadt, was the boarding house owned by Wolfe's mother Julia. The visitor
center isaframe building with atall, central gable-roof atrium lit by aglasscurtainwall, gable-roof sde
wing, and hip-roof wraparound porch. The building exterior is compaosed of weetherboards over brick knee
walls, comer boards, and decorative sunburdsin the gable ends The main building roof is agphdt shingle,
but the porch roof is danding-seam metd. The square porch podsdisplay solid brackets. The visitor canter
contains an exhibit hall, smal theater, restrooms, gift shop, and offices. A serpentine brick retaining wall
Spardes the visitor center and sdewalks from the yard of the Wolfe House Memoridl.

Condos 60 North Market Street, 2008 NC-B

Desgned by Coopar Carry Architectsof Atlanta, 60 North Market Street isanine-story mixed-use
building of brick and glass on atwo-story sone-venear base The L-shape building atempts to mediate
between the adjacent eight-story Altamont Apartments, which it wrgps around, to the northwest and the
twelve-sory Renaissance Hotd to the eest. The exterior is enriched with projecting vertical window bays,
cantilevered baconies, recessad upper-dory terraces, and plate-glass wadndows on the end devations. The
building contains sixty-nine resdentia units, four commercid goaces, and a 100-g0ece parking deck a the
beee of the building.

Akzona Building, 1 North Pack Square, 1982 n NC-B
Formed from the American Enka Corporation, Akzona plarmed, in 1977, for new corporate offices to
be designed by the renowned architecturd firm of I. M. Pa and built on Pack Square. The announcement
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gopeared to be amuch nesded boost for downtown. A full block of early twentieth century commercid
buildings were razed for the construction of the Akzona Building, which the company put up for sdle soon
after itscompletion. The Biltmore Company purchased the smcture 1986.

The Akzona Building isamonalithic sk-story concrete and glassbuilding with atall concrete tower
a the wes end and a penthouse level with acurving exterior wall opening onto arooftop terrace. The
building was congructed over asubterranean parking garage that extends to the south benesth Padk Square
The building's south and eedt devations—the public face of the building—overlook landscgped portions of
Pack Square, but the College Street (north) elevation ismore audere

Pack Place, 2 S. Pack Square, 1992 NC-B
Built on the Ste of the Plaza Theater (see #51 above). Pack Place is amulti-purpose education, arts,

and sdence canter that includes the Diana Wortham Theeter, Colbum Earth Scence Museum, and The

Hedth Adventure within thisfacility completed in 1992; the Asheville Art Museum isdso part of Pack

Race and ishousad in the adjacent former Pack Library Building, which was renovated for interior

connection to the new facility. Designed by Spaceplan Architecture of Asheville, the two-gory brick

entrance block isthe visible portion of the structure on Pack Square. It is composed of a centrd projecting

pavilion with atall arched window, recessad entrance, marble venear base and belt course, multi-color

brickwork, and sone accents. The pavilion is cgoped by ameta-clad pyramida roof The remander of the

facility islocated on the interior of the block.

Commerdial Building, 11 Rankin Avenue, ca. 1927 Yo~ C-B

Now cormected intemally to the building a& 27 N. Lexington Avenue (Sse #131 above), the building
a 11 Rankin Avenue gopears to have bean built as a separate smcture a the rear. The two-story brick
commercid building features two storefrontsflankingacentra single-leaf entry to the second story, rowlock
string courses, decorative brick pands, twin pesked pargpets, and acorbelled comice. The Storefronts are
composad of metd-frame digplay windows on sonevenear bulkhead walls and recessed entrances. The
centra entrance contains areplacement door st within asegmenta arch opening with an articulated
keysone The sscond-gory windows are groups of three one-over-one double-hung sseh wadth rowlock sills
and surrounds and soldier-course lintels. A vertical rectangular pand is positioned between the two window
groups and the peeked pargpets have diamond-shaped pands The window openings on the exposad south
eevation ae plain with rowlock sills and have bean boarded over.

Rankin Avenue Parking Deck, 12 Rankin Avenue, 1988 NC-S
A six-level parking deck built by the city in 1988 and designed Enwright Associates Inc. of

Greenville, South Carolina. The parking levds are saggered to aregte the impression that the smcture is no

more than two-gtoriestall on the exterior. A three-gtory brick stair tower is located a the southesst comer

and features atall arched window mnning the full height of the stairwell and acrass-gable concrete roof
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dmcture dad with metd roofing. A similar sair and evator tower islocated on the west sde of the parking
deck adjoining the city-owned arcade through 31 Haywood Street. The concrete exterior of the smctureis
enlivened with angled comers, rectangular openings on the lower level, pesked openings on the upper level,
and decorative metd railings.

Wall Streat Parking Deck, 43 Wall Street, 1988 NC-S
A four-level parking deck built by the city in 1988 and designed by Enwright Assodiates Inc. of
Greenville, South Carolina. The parking levels are aranged in adouble-helix pattem woth a continuous
circulation pattern from the entrance on Otis Stredt to the exit on Battery Park Avenue. A three-story eevator
tower of pattemed concrete block islocated a the southeest comer and st a aforty-five degree angle. The
tower is cgopad by across-gable roof and digplays clock faces st in glass-block pandson three Sdes. A
partially endosad dair tower located a the northwest comer is sat within the exterior skin of the parking
deck. The concarete exterior is enlivened by rectangular openings, recessed vertical pands, and round metal
ber railings. A row of glassendosed offices are located on the lowest leve of the smcture facing south onto

Wall Sred.
INVENTORY LIST - UPDATESTO BOUNDARY INCREASE | .

1 Burlington Hotd, 60 Biltmore Avenue, 1925, ca. 1989 C-B

The building wes being rehabilitated at the time it was listed. The project uncovered the sscond-gory
window openings and replaced or repafred the three dtered storefronts. The second-gory windows are
replacement one-over-one double-hung sseh with five-light transoms. Loca architect Jm Samsd, whose
office islocated in the building, desgned the rehabilitation project.

2. Commercial Building, 64 Biltmore Avenue, 1925, ca. 1989 C-B

The building wes being rehabilitated a the time it was listed. The second-gory windows are
replacament one-over-one double-hung saeh to replicate the originals, which had deteriorated. The storefront
wes restored, but the original double-leaf glazed wood entry doors were replaced with asimilar single-leaf
door. Loca architect Jm Samsd designed the rehabilitation project.

INVENTORY LIST - UPDATESTO BOUNDARY INCREASE Il

259. Commerdial Building, 88 Church Street, 1984, ca. 2000 NC-B
The building wes extensively remodded ca 2000 and converted to offices. Thefront doors and
windows have bean replaced, including agroup of three glazed doors in the place of an original overhead

garage door.
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262. E. C. Merrill House, 77 Church Strest, 1915, ca. 2005 NC-B

The Merrill Housewes extensively rehabilitated ca. 2005, including replacement  nine-over-one
double-hung saeh, decorativefiligree bargeboard in the porch gable end, a north sde porch addition, and a
ubdantid one-and-a-hdf-dory rear addition with ahip-roof upper story The changes to the house dter the
original scdeand materids, rendering it non-contributing. ;

264. Sindair-Robinson House, 89 Church Street, 1914, ca. 2000 C-B
The house hes bean rehabilitated and a new wood porch bausfrade has replaced the non-historic
metd railing presant a the time of the nomination.

Garage, 1914 Demalished
The garage, which was subgtantidly deteriorated a the time of the nomination, was removed
fromthe dte ca 2000.

268. Linnie DavisHouse, 16 Ravenscroft Drive, ca. 1916, ca 1990 NC-B

The house wes rehabilitated inthe early 1990s with the remova of rolled agphdt sding to reved the
original wood shingles, remova of the interior brick chimney, and new wdndows and doors on the enclosed
porch. The endosed porch remains an unsympeathetic dteration to the house and the houseis a non-
contributing resource.

269. Mrs Emma Wandrom House, 20 Ravenscroft Drive, 1916, ca. 2000 C-B
The house hes been extensively rehabilitated with the ingtallation of vinyl siding on the faBade and
front eave, replacement one-over-one windows, replacement porch baustrade and handicgp-accessible ramp
extending to thefront of the property, and partia endoaure of the north Sde of the porch. The materia
changes including interior changes noted in the earlier nomination, render the property non-contributing.

INVENTORY LIST - BOUNDARY INCREASE m

Biltmore Avenue, east side

Vacant parcd #1 - paved parking lot.

Ledford & Shoemaker Esso Service Station, 76 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1954 C-B
Thisonegory Art Modeme sarvice gation was buih on the Ste of the Colonial Lodge, aboarding

housethat offered furnished rooms and sood herethrough the 1940s. Although originally opened by Msss.
Ledford and Shoemeker, the station was operated by Fred Mutton during the 1960s.
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The building features aprominent rounded comer office and waiting room with three service bays
located on the north Sde of the building. The masonry building is covered with thin meta pands and some
replacement wood sheathing. The three sarvice bays are endosed with areplacement meta overhead door in
the north end bay and single-leaf entries and frame walls in the other two bays. The comer office is shdtered
by acantilevered flat canopy and the curving windows have been partially covered. A single-leaf glazed door
topped by a transom provides aocess to the office. A dividing wall with three pierced openings screens a
projecting block thet likely contained restrooms, which digplays glassblock and meta-frame sseh windows.
Thetwo exterior doorways have been endosaed. The building was rehabilitated in the 2000s and converted to
agndl busnessoffice. The building dts a therear of itslot with an open paved parking areadirectly in
front. The building retains sufficient integrity to be contributing within the boundary increese despite the
endosad savice bays The bays still dearly read as sarvice bays with the new walls setback into the

openings.

(former) Coca-Cola Battling Plant, 90 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1905 C-B

The Coca-Cola Bottling Plant was erected in the early 1900s & aprominent curve in Biltmore
Avenue as it extends south from Pack Square. Thetwo-gory brick building is plainlyfinishedand featuresa
four-bay storefront with cagt-iron columns. Each of the large storefront windows and the double-leaf enfry
and sddights are topped by tall transoms. Comer piers are embd lished with recessad vertical pands,
dthough thefirst-storypands are filled with decorative tile. A stringcourse of clinker brick carries aoross the
faBade and silIs of the four second-gory one-over-one double-hung sseh windows, which are topped by flat
brick arches A decorative band in the upper faBade 0 makes use of the clinker brick for confrast. A
recessed single-leaf glazed-and-panded entry door with afransomat the south end of the faBade opens onto
dairs to the ssoond gory. First-story windows on the south el evation are meta-frame casamants and
industrial sseh, while the second-gory windows are one-over-one saeh. A one-story shed-roof wing projects
a therear; atall square chimneyrisesagand the reer of the wing and the painted words " Coca-Cold' remain
visible on eech face of the chimney. Lower shed-roof additions extend in both directionsfrom the rear wing,
with aframe section on abrick foundation stretching to the south. This section displays cormgated metd
sding over wood planks, expossd rafter tails, and six-over-six double-hung sssh. The block to the north
extends beyond the north wall of the building and isfini shedwith succo siding, exposed rafter tails, axdd a
horizonta band of paired eight-light wood-saeh windows and rowlock brick sills. This section gppears to
have been added in the 1940s dong with the one-story gable-roof wing on the north eevation. The gable-
roof wing mey have originally been an open (or partially enclosed) canopy that wes later endosed with wood
frame walls and panded sheething.

Sorage Building, ca. 1922 C-B
Built as dorage for the bottling plant, the brlck building presents a one-gory faBadefrom
Biltmore Avenue, but it extends to three Sories on the eest Sde overlooking South Market Stredt.
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The onegory faBade isrdatively plain with asingle garage bay entered through areplacement meta
overheed door and adjoining sngle-leaf door, replacement plate-glass window, and corbelled pands
in the upper faBade. A one-dory concrete block addition projects to the south and is supported on
ded I-beam pods. The addition, built in the 1940s, contains metal-frameindustrial seeh windows
with rowlock brick sills. Thethree-gtory rear section conddts of areinforced-concrete frame
dmcture, brick infill pands, and meta-frame industrial sssh. A single garage bay with a replacement
metd overheed door islocated in the center bay on South Market Street. A large painted Coca-Cola
dgn depicting abottle st againg ared ovd field remains visible on the south sde of the building,
where adair tower rises above the pargpet.

Flora Sorrdl Boarding House, 100 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1911 C-B

This imposing two-story Colonia Reviva-style brick house hes served as a boarding house, tourist
home, and gpartments. The building rests on an ashlar foundation with sone extending onto the porch, porch
pogs, and faBade while the main body of the houseisbrick laid in American bond. The house features three
interior brick chimneys, hip- and shed-roof dormers, degp eaves with modillions, and an atached one-story
flat-roof porch that wraps around the south Sde of the house the porch is now endased with brick onthe
south sde. The porch is carried by chamfered sone posts on gonepiers with ameta baudrade, and a metd
baudrade surrounds the porch roof bacony. The centrad entrance is composed of asingle-leaf glazed-and-
panded doorflankedby wide sddights over two wood pands. Thefirst-storywindows are three-part
tracery-over-one double-hung saeh. A second-dory front enfrance opens onto the porch roof balcony and is
framed by tracery sddights and an arched opening with asolid demi-lune pandl. The sscond-dory entrance
isflankedby paired tracery-over-one windows. Windows on the Sde and rear elevations are typically one-
over-one double-hung seeh under flat brick arches An aray of solar panelsis mounted on aged frame aop
the endosad south Sde of the porch. A one-gtory reer el wias added probably in the 1960s and rests on atall
concrete-block foundation. The ell digplays Sepped sde pargpets and one-over-one windows.

HoraMcD. Sorrell, widow of Marcdlus Sorrell, operated aboarding house here after its
congtmction. It later became known as the Deluxe Tourist Home and operated as such through the middle of
the twentieth century. Nick Poulos managed the tourist home through the 1960s while aso working & the
CadinaGrill. Itiscurrently used as gpatments

Vacant parcel #2 - paved parking lot.
Biltmore Avenue, west side
GulfPride Service Station, 91 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1941,2007 C-B

This one-gdory Art Modeme sarvice dation features gently rounded comers and edges, projecting
centra pavilion, and a three-part molded band on the upper faBade. Originally opened by Horace N. Ellis, the
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building dts back from the dreet with paved parking located directly infront. The faBade of the stucco-over-
masonry building was clad in enamded sed pandsa some point, probably inthe 1960s, but during a 2007
rehabilitation project, the deteriorated pandswere removed. The original stucco nesded only oot repairs. A
sngle-leaf centrd entry located in the pavilion is framed by angled glass-block siddlights. Aflatpolygona
canopy shdtersthe entry. Two sarvice baysare located on the north sde of the entrance and have been fitted
with meta-frame glass walls emulating the gppearance of the original overhead service bay doors. A similar
meta-frame muhi-light window is positioned on the south sde of the entrance. Two metd-frame industrial-
sseh windows on the north eevation were removed and filled with stucco pands, whichflanka garage
entrance with ametd overhead door. Metd-frame industrial saeh on the rear devation remain intact. Inthe
19505 Howard Stines owned and operated a separate body shop, which was located in the besamant of the
building and acoessed from South Lexington Avenue.

Skatdand Rallcrdome 101 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1949,2002 C-B

Built in the late 1940s the one-gtory, 20,000-square-foot brick building served from 1950 until 1962
a6 the Skaidand RoUerdome, aroller skating rink. After a couple of years as the Biltmore Lanes bowling
dley, thefirst night dub—Jede Smith Cabaret Club—opened in the building in 1967. The Orange Ped
followed in 1973-74, becoming Asheville's premier soul and R& B night goot and one of the region's top
African American music venues The original Orange Ped hogted the mogt popular R& B and fijnk musicians
of the time, as well as local disc jockeys from one of the country's few black-owned radio sations, WBMU-
FM, in the mid-1970s The club dosed in the early 1980sand served anumber for many years as Sorage for
auto parts. The building was extensvely rehabilitated in 2002 and reopened as the Orange Ped Socid Aid &
Feaaure Club, returning to its original recregtion and entertainment function.

The building is an imposing masonry smcture with abrick faBade and tall sepped pargpet, concrete
block sde and rear devations, and an irregularly-coursed sone foundation. The faBade isten bayswide with
a recesssd entrance and display window occupying the two baysa the north end of the feBade. The
remaining eight bays contain six-over-six double-hung saeh windowswith rowlock sillsand cast concrete
lintels. The ten bays are surmounted by recessed vertical pandsthat are corbelled a the top with the
exception of four centra bays which contain louvered vents st within openingsframed by rowlock sillsand
cadt conarete lintels. An atached shed-roof porch hes been buih on the north eevation of the building. On
the south eevation, aflat-roof projecting bay supported on a sone foundation and containing an office is
original to the building. A sscond projecting bay dad in msted corrugated metal siding and resting on a
poured concrete besewas added ca. 2010. A two-tiered exterior metd dair and Sde entrances shdtered by a
tall shed-roof addition supported on sted I-beam pogtiswere added during the rehabilitationin 2002.

O'Kédley's Amooo Service Station, 111 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1944 C-B
Thisonegory Art Deco-gyle filling station with a stucco exterior and service wing hes been
converted to asmdl busness office. The main block containing the office features a single-leaf entrance



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval 1024-0018
(8-86)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese 111,
Boundary Decreese and Additional Documentation

Section number 7 Page 45 Asheville, Buncombe County, NC

framed by pilagers rising to form a centra fronti spiecewith vertical banding. Plate-glass display windows
with thin metd framesf |l ankthe entrance and wrap around the northeast comer of the building. An atached
auminum awvning shdtersthe windows. The upper faBade is accented by horizontal bands The atached
svice wing contains two bays on the south sSde of the office and one bay to the rear; the two front bays
have been endosad with wood pand siding, smdl rectangular Sngle-pane windows, and alow concrete
block wall extending across the bay. The rear bay is acoesssd through areplacement metd roll-up door. A
large window opening flanking the rear service garage bay and sscondary enfrance hes been covered with
plywood shegathing. The rear (west) and south devations are painted brick with large metd-frame industrial
sseh windows. Thewindow & the north end of the rear devation has d o been covered with plywood
sheathing. The building is st back from the street with parking located in front of and on the north Sde of
the building.

Fannie McCoy's boarding house sood on the ste until the early 1940s when it was replaced by this
Amoco gation. Janes O'Kelley operated the station, which was built around 1944. In the 1950s the Parker
Motor Company operated an auto repair busnessin the reer of the building. By the 1960s One-Hour
Martinizing, adry deaner, occupied the building.

Snider-Sawyer-L eonard House, 123 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1890, ca. 1905, ca. 1940, 2003 C-B

Built in the early 1890s, the house is afashionable two-story hip-roof brick dwelling set on an
devated Ste above Biltmore Avenue. The three-bay, double-pile resdence features interior brick chimneys
with corbeled cgps decorative gables and hip-roof dormers with wood shingles, and nine-over-nine double-
hung saeh. A wrgparound porch that had been added to the housein the first decade of the twentieth century
was removed many years ago. The single-leaf glazed-and-panded entry door digplays adight ssgmentd arch
opening and is framed by timber pilagters with visible adze marks, arched dentil comice, and a projecting
architrave supported by brackets. Two-gtory hip-roof flanking wings project a the rear comers. A one-dory
polygond bay on the north elevation was added around 1910. At the rear, a one-gory porch thet is now
endased with wood shingles connectsto aone-gtory hip-roof brick addition built around 1905; the rear block
was enlarged to the south in the late-twentieth century and includes a single garage bay in the basament. A
amdl hip-roof brick addition was built on the southwest wing. An atached shed-roof addition on the south
dde of the houseis covered with wood shingles and lit by six-light wood-frame windows. Begirming around
the 1940s the houseweas used by Dr. Milton Leonard as an anima hospital through the 1960s The building
st vacant and deteriorating from the 1970s until 2003, when it was rehabilitated. The rehabilitation project
was desgned by loca architect Michag McDonough.

Carmichad-Leonard House, 129 Biltmore Avenue, ca. 1890 C-B
Built around 1890 for Whitfield C. Carmichad, the houseis a fashionable two-story Itdianate brick

dwelling st on an devated Ste above Biltmore Avenue. The house hes an irregular plan with projecting

front pavilions and a round two-gtory Sde bay. An atached one-story wraparound porch was removed many
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yearsago and replaced by two hip-roof porcheson ether Sdeof the front pavilion and Stuated in the interior
angles aregted by the various projecting bays The agphdt-shingle hip roof displaysan interior brick chimney
and bracketed eaves The front gable end containsa smal diamond vent. The wdndows are one-over-one
double-hung saeh topped by flat brick arches At the rear a second-gtory shed-roof frame bay covered with
adbedtios shinglesweas added above a one-story comer porch, which is accessble from alate-twentieth-
century handicgp ramp with wood railings. A one-story gable-roof brick ell projects to the rear from the
southwest comer. The interior features exposad floors, moldings, wainscot, and darcase and remansintact.

W. C. Camichad acquired the property from Reuben Rawlsin 18838, and likely built the house soon
theregfter. It had a successon of ownersthrough the first half of the twentieth century before it was
purchased by Dr. Milton M. and Pearl Leonard in 1944. Dr. Leonard founded the Leonard Anima Hospital
next door a 123 Biltmore Avenue. By the 1960s, the house had been subdivided for goartments. It was
rehabilitated for use as offices in the mid-1990s.

Servants and Coach House, ca. 1890 C-B

The sarvants and coach (or carriage) house congsts of a one-gory triple-A-roof brick
dwelling that is two doriesa the reer. It gopearsthat the lower sory was originally used as the coach
house The building features a Sanding-seeam metd roof, weetherboardsin the gable ends, anine-
light window in the front gable, eight-over-eight double-hung saeh on the faBade, and Sx-over-six
double-hung saeh on the Sdesand rear. The single-leaf front entrance consists of a replacement door
framed by awide surround of pilastersand aprojecting flat architrave supported on carved brackets.
A smilar surround frames the rear lower-story entrance and single-leaf six-light-over-two-panel
door. The entrance surroundsmay not be original, athough they beer somesumllarlty to the entrance
surround on the adjacent housea 123 Biltmore Avenue,

Carter Street, east side

Citizen Express Building, &4 Carter Street, 1950 C-B

{N.B. Theaddress of the building historically has been 38 N. French Broad Avenue, but the building
extends thefull block between North French Broad Avenue and Carter Street. It currently houses multiple
busi nesses with addresses on both streets, and the parcel identification number for the building is associated
with the 64 Carter Street address.)

The two-gtory, flat-roof concrete block building was erected in 1950 as the offices and transfer
dation for Citizen Expressinc., alocd tmcking company formed by newspaper publishers Charles A. Webb
oi  Adheville Citizen and Don Elias of ihQ Asheville Times Any official relationship with the newsgper
opaaionsad its distribution remainsundear. The company later added air freight transfer to its services.
Citizen Expressremained active into the 19680swith Benjamin Humphries, former corporate secretary, taking
over the busnessfrom the two founding officers. The building presents a continuous eevation on its south
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dde, but it iscomposad of three sepped-back sections as evidenced on the north side. The origina building
conggted of the two sections a the west, with the third (eat) block likely added in the 1960s The smcture
isged frame with aconcrete block exterior and aflat pargpet topped by aterra cottatile coping. The westem
block contained three tmck bays and an office section with first- and second-gory windows. The center
block held three loading bays on itsnorth eevation and one on its eest Sde that were acocessed by araised
concrete platform and shdtered by aflat-roof canopy. The loading platform on the north Sde has been
endosed. Congmction of the last section of the building obscured the eest |oading bay, but this two-story
block included aone-dtory rear section with four loading bays. Some original metal-frame industrial sash
remain visible, but mog of the windows have been covered. The building is currently used as a nightclub and
entertainment venue, which has resulted in the addition of exterior wood gtars and devated wood decks
(both covered and uncovered) on the south Sde of the building.

North French Broad Avenue, west side

French Broad Avenue Methodis Church, 14 N. French Broad Avenue, 1928, 2006 C-B

Agheville architect Charles N. Parker designed the Tudoresque red brick church trimmed with
limestone in 1928 to replace an earlier frame building that bumed the previousyeer. L. L. Merchant served
as the contractor. The building presentsatall one-story front-gable nave with ahip-roof wing to the north
and asguare comer tower with angle buttresses a the southeest comer. The south and eedt faces of the tower
digplay vertica sone pands containing apeeked vent on the eest Sde and awindow on the south e evation.
A cadt done pand on the eedt pargpet features arelief crass. The gabled faBade contains alarge Tudor
Gothic arch window with tracery and opdescant glass. A small, projecting, offset front-gable bay onthe
faBade contains an entrance. Two shed-roof Sdewingswith half-timbered gable ends project from the rear
comers of the building; the north wing isdightly larger than the south wing. Limestonewindow trim is
keyed into brick walls, and the windows are typically multi-light casaments and, on the Sdesof the
sanctuary, peeked gained glasswindows. On the sde wings and rear of the building, the windows are
typicaly sx-over-one double-hung saeh. The building features alimestone watertable, interior brick
chimneys, astucoo gable end on the rear evation, leeded-glasswindows, and afull besamant exposad a the
rear of the building. The church building was converted for use as arecording studio in 2006.

Pioner Building, 40-44 N. French Broad Avenue, 1956 C-B

The Fonear Building (now known as Asheville Broad Center) is atwo-story T-shgpe office building
condructed in 1956. Thetwo-gtory nine-bay fabade is composed of avertical membears and, on the second-
dory, triple meta-frame windows over panded lower walswith asplit-level entrance in the north end bay.
The faBade wall isrecessed dightly and ametd-dad pent roof shdters thefirst-storydouble windows. The
two bays a the south end of the faBade project over adriveway to parking a the reer with square pods
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supporting the overhanging smcture. The sem of the"T," which dretchesto the wes, isthree doriesin
height with alower level exposad a the rear. The building is consmcted of brick with thin concrete pands
covering the faBade and sde devations exoept for the basamant level. An exterior metd fire sair islocated
on the blind rear wall of the building. A one-gtory flat-roof wing is atached to the top of the" T" a the north
end. Thiswing ispartidly clad with Parmagone venesr and features an angled entrance framed by square
windows and concrete paneled walls.

TheU.S. Sodid Security Adminigtration and U.S. Forest Service were among the first tenants of the
building. Other occupants included the Life Insurance Company of Virginia, Life and Casudty of Tennesseg,
and severd  accountants

Vacant parcel #3 - two paved parking lots for Buncombe County SheriffsOffice and impound lot.

South French Broad Avenue, east side

Chrigtian & Missonary AllianceChurch, 12-16 S. French Broad Avenue, 1929-30, ca. 1944,1968 C-B

Smpleone-gory front-gable Rugtic Reviva-style sone church building buih in 1929-1930 for the
Chrigian & Missonary Alliance Church congregation, which had organized afew years earlier during a tent
revival on Coxe Avenue. The large rectangular-plan building is constmcted of irregularly-course gone and
rests on afull besament exposad a the rear of the building. The faBade is composed of seven round-arch
bays containing the centra double-leaf wood entry doors and fanlight and flanking metal-frame opa escent
colored-glass windows. Two small, arched windows are located a the endsof the faBade. The plain entrance
is aooessad by conarete Sepswith sone chesk walls and conarete caps. The Sde devation issix bays with
meta-frame multi-light hopper windows, asingle-leaf entrance with transom acocesssd by aconcrete ramp in
the first bay, and exterior metd gairs a the reer of the north elevation. A smple segple on a square bese was
likely added in the 1960s The interior of the sanctuary was extensively renovated in 1968.

A flat-roof covered walkway supported on Sone posts extends to the south and coimects the main
sanctuary with the education building, which was completed around 1944. The two-story,front-gablestone
dmcture features a centra full-height window bay framed by vertical cast concrete accents; the meta-frame
szeh hold tranducent glass. The pediment contains acircular vent with adecorative metd grille. Windows on
the south devation are metal-frame hopper windows with sed lintels and concrete sills. A lower, L-shaped
block wrgps around the north and eest Sdes of the education wing, adthough it gopears to have been
congmcted &s part of the building.”

" Asheville Citizen (March 7, 1968).
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South French Broad Avenug west 5de
Vacant parcd #4 - paved parking lct.

House, 19 S French Broad Avenue, ca. 1906 C-B

A large two-gtory, hip-roof Quean Arme-syle housewith projecting two-story front- and sde-gabled
bays narrow Gaman sding, wood shingles in the gable ends interior brick chimneys, and one-over-one
double-hung saeh. The house restson an irregularly-coursed sone foundation that hes been painted. The
atached one-gory wragparound porch is carried on tumed and panded postswith abadudrade of tumed
bauges A full bessmatisreveded a the rear of the house due to the doping site. A concrete barrier wall
is located dong the sdewdk infront of the house Origmally usad as a boarding house, the building hes been
converted to law offices.

House, 25 S French Broad Avenue, ca. 1924 C-B

A boxy two-gtory, hip-roof Craftsman-influenced dwelling wdth decorative front and north Sde
gables interior and exterior brick chimneys, and four-over-one double-himg sash. The house hes been
covered with vinyl sding. An atached fiill-wddth hip-roof porch is carried on tapered wood posts and brick
piers with ametd baudrade. The porch shdtersargplacement single-leaf entry door. The house, which is
currently ussd for gpartments, was originally built as amulti-family dwelling, probably aduplex.

Grove Sreet, west side

(former) YWCA and Moorhead House, 11-23 Grove Street, 1924,1934 C-B
The former YWCA complex condgsof the origina smcture designed in 1924 by locd architect
William H. Lord and an annex, known as Moorhead House, which was built in 1934 by New Y ork architect
Clinton MacKenzie. The main building is awel-composed two-story-plus-basament Georgian Revival-style
building with pedimented pavilionsflanking agabled entrancewith afanlight and pilastered surround. A
modillion and dentil comice embdllishes the exterior and the pediments contain distinctive demi-lune
windows. The symmetrica faBade displays paired sx-over-one double-hung wood saeh windows, brick
quoins, soldier-course belt course above the basament, and rowlock brick sillsand soldier-course lintels
framing the windows. The single-leaf entry door is amodem replacement and isflankedon ether sde by
narrow six-light windows, acloth avning shdtersthe fanlight. Concrete sepswith metd baudrades|ead to
the entrance. The besamat isvisible a the front of the building due to a ggp between the sdewak and the
dructure. A brick retaining wall with ample metd fencing supports the reer of the sdewak. An atached
wood-shingle shed-roof canopy shdtersthe basament a the north end of the building. Exterior metd fire
dairs are presant on the south eevation. A tall rear wing st into the dope of the Ste features a modified
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gambrd roof, sed roof tmsses, metal-frame indusfrial seeh windows, and contained a gynmasium. A flat-
roof brick wing on the south Sde of the gymnasium contained a swirmning pool and was illuminated by
glass-block windows.

An endosed two-story breezeway connectsthe main building to the adjacent Moorhead House, a
resdencehall for girlsfunded by a$100,000 bequest from Samud E. Moorhead of New Y ork. Moorhead
Houseis athree-gory-plus basement, hip-roof Neo-Georgian-style brick building with an off-center three-
bay front-gable entrance pavilion. A two-gtory flat-roof portico on monumental Tuscan columns and
pilagters shdtersthe sngle-leaf entry door, whichis framed by sddights with diamond- and cirde-shaped
lights, pairedflutedpilagters, and aplain enteblature. Three marble sepslead to the front entrance. Thethree
windows postioned abovethe portico feature solid sone lintels. The building exhibits amodillion comice,
comice returns, lunette window in the front gable end, sone belt courses first-storyfront and reer bay
windows, and a setback three-story wing a the south end with an interior end chimney. Windows throughout
ae typicaly replacement six-over-sx seeh dthough afew original eight-over-eight double-hung sash and
meta-frame casament windowsremain in place. Afive-bayarcade a the basement level on the rear has been
endossd with brick infill pandsand replacement windows. A two-story ell projects to the reaer fromthe
north end of the building and Sits on an arcaded bese

The annex could accommodate forty-six resdents, including thirty-two permanent and fourteen
trandent girls. In addition to bedrooms and bathrooms, the building contained alibrary, lounge, dining hall,
kitchen, radio room, tmnk room, house servants locker rooms, offices, and storage. The open terrace porch,
which is now endosed, was touted as an attractive feature of the building. Chauncey Beadle, heed gardener
a Biltmore, designed the terrace landscape, but the lower level has been paved for parking.”

Patton Avenue, north side

Nu-Way Cleaners, 167 Patton Avenue, 1961 CB
A one-gory, rectangular-plan brick building occupiesacomer lot and is st back from the dreet to
alow for on-gte parking infrontof and on the eest Sde of the building. The building isfinishedwith a
decorative ashlar-face brick, heeder-course string courses, and a concrete coping on the flat pargpet. The of f-
center double-leaf entrance contains metal-frame glazed doorswith athree-light window to the west. The
windows on the faBade and eedt devation are large three-light windows set within metal frames with
horizontal muntins, excgat for the north window on the eest elevation, which isareplacement. A single
garage bay with areplacement metd overhead door is located a the northeast comer of the building, and a
brickfl uerisesa the rear of the building. The building opmed in 1961 as Nu-Way Cleanerswith Carrall

Rice a8 manege.

Asheville Citizen-Times (Nowembe 11, \934). . . J
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Salvation Army Building, 175 Patton Avenue, 1926,2008 ' C-B

Desgned by loca architect Charles N. Parker, the Sdvation Army Building is an interesting two-
dory-plus-basament Neo-Federd-gtyle brick hal and offices with limestone trim. The faBede detailing wraps
around on thefirst bay of thewest Sde devation. The besemant level ismsticated on the facade, axd a
limestone gtringcourse separatesit from the brick digperwork pattem of colored heeder bricks on the first and
soond gories of the facade. A limestone architrave supports the flat brick pargpet with sone piers topped by
ums and gone coping. The recessad entrance is accessed through alimestone screen composad of Tuscan
columns supporting an entablature and solid demi-lune pand incised with "Savation Army 1926." Round-
acchedfirst-storywindows with demi-lune limestone pands flank the entrance on the faade. A recessed
sscond-gory porch, added in 2008, islocated above the entrance. The second-story center bay originally
featured athree-part window above a shdlow projecting ba cony, which was a decorative demeant with a
solid brick baludrade, limestone comer piers, and modillion blocks. A new meta and tendle ged railing hes
been added to the balcony. L. L. Merchant sarved as contractor for the construction of the new "Citaddl,” as
it was cdled in the organization's parlance, which reportedly cost $75,000." The organization outgrew the
building by the 1970s and anew facility opened on Haywood Road inWest Ashevillein 1975.

The building was rehabilitated in 2008 and converted to arecording studio. Asaresult the opaescent
purple auditorium windows on the Sde eevation were replaced with opaque art glass, besament windows
were replaced with glassblocks, and the remaining windows were replaced with sx-over-one double-hung
szeh. In the ssoond bay of the west elevation, the basement-levd entrance opening hes bean partidly filled
with brick and arglacement single-leaf door. An endosed, origina second-story window opening now
contains alunettewindow. A center section of the roof gppears to have been adgpted for use as aterrace.

Patton Avenue, south Sde ' .

PublicServiceCompanyof NCOffice, 168 Patton Avenue, 1961 C-B
The digtinctive Modemist building was designed for the loca office of the Public Service Company
of North Cardling, the natura ges utility company. The one-gtory flat-roof trapezoidad-shape building, which
iswider a the fabede than the rear, features ametd-frame glass curtain wall faBade and feathered pands
adong the 9de devations composad of cadt concrete Y™ columns and brick infill. The Y-shgpe columns
upport inverted pyramida roof soringers that create diamond-shgpe windows within their openings and
extend the full length of the Sde devation above the brick wall pands. A double-leaf glazed entrance in
faBade is no longer usd for acoess An entrance on the west Sde of the building is acocesssd by concrete
degps with a decorative metd baudrade thet reflects the structural geometry of the building. A thin concrete
dab roof on squere pods emulaes the rise of the exterior gairs.

Origind drawings, North Carolina Collection, Padk Memoria Library, Asheville, NC. Asheville Citizen (duly 17, 1960).
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The 4,300-5quare-foot office building officially opened in December 1961. Designed by the Six
Asodiaes firm, it was constmcted by Robinson Brothers Constmction Company a acost of $100,000."

Vacant parcel #5 - paved parking lot.

Campbédl Mator Company Building, 180-184 Patton Avenue, ca. 1950 C-B

Modest one-gory, front-gable commercia building sarved for many years as the home of Campbdl
Motor Company, ausad car dedler. The main block of the building isalong rectangular smcture extending
perpendicular to the street with aprojecting polygona storefront and multiple garage bays on the long esst
eevation. The wood-frame storefront windowstilt outward dightly as they rise from their brick bulkheed
bes= The conarete block building is stuccoed on the eedt € evation while the rear (south) and west devations
are exposed block. The front gable end is covered by plywood with battens and the rear gable end is clad
with agohdt shingles Five garage bays are located on the eest Sde and the four reaer bays are acoessed
through panded wood overheed doors. The bay dosest to the front of the building contains triple-leaf nine-
light-over-two-pand doors. Two other single-leaf doors on the eadt elevation are replacements. The asphdlt
shingle roof hes exposed rafter tails and the metd-frame industrial sseh windows are dmog al partialy
covered with plywood. A one-gory concrete-block wing projectsto the west in linewith the faBade. The
wing exhibits agtucco faBade, terra cotta coping, large display window, boarded-up single-leaf entry, and
loading platformsa the rear. A projecting flat awning shdtersthe display window.

The building first gopearsin city directories around 1950 as the George White Motor Company,
which sold used cars. After acouple of years, the building housed the Campbell Motor Company, adso a ussd
ca deder, owned by John H. Campbell. The Campbe | dedership occupied this location imtil 1968, and the
building sood vacat intothe early 1970s The paved lot (Vacant parce #5) onthe eedt Sde of the building
was assodated with the busness

INVENTORY LIST - BOUNDARY DECREASE

200. Pigyah Building, 129 Patton Avenue, 1926 Demadlished

The building was demalished around 1990 for congtruction of the Veach-Bailey Federd Complex, a
ax-gory office building completed in 194 that lies mostly outsde the district boundary. Most of the Pisgah
Building ste wes redesigned as an entrance plaza to the new federa building and contains a thirty-seven-
foot-tall coreten ded sculpture by American artist Albert Pdey entitled "Passage™ The Federd Complex
occupies modt of the block face, outsde of the district to the west, exoept for avery smal portion of its eedt
end that extendsinto the Fisgah Building site.

~ Asheville Citizen {Decemhsr 7, 1961). o' \
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Statement of Significance
Summary

The Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese |11, Boundary Decrease and Additional
Documentation enlarges the existing historic district composed of the centra busnessdistrictin Asheville,
North Caroling, and removes aone parcd fromthe origina district listed in 1979. 1t extendsthe period of
sgnificancefrom ca 1940 to 1961 for the origina historic district and two subssquent boundary increases,
which cover gpproximatdy thirty-three blocks of the downtown commercia core and closdy assodated
resdentia arees The origina digtrict and first two boimdary increeses were listed with aperiod of
sgnificance from the 1840s to ca 1940. Boundary Increese |11 includes arange of early and mid-twentieth
century architectura gyles and the work of prominent local architects William Lord, Charles Parker, and Six
Assodiaes. The mix of architecture in the areesof this boundary increese aress represents Asheville's boom
period in the first decades of the twentieth century and more modem buildings as the city recoveredfi”omthe
Depresson. Beginningin the late 1950sand early 1960s, the energence of Modemism and the combined
pressures of suburbanization, automobile reliance, and urban renewd initiated two decades of significant
changes to the fabric of downtown. This expanson of the Downtown Asheville Historic District augments
the origina district by reflecting the continuity of deveopment in the commercia heart of Ashevillethrough
the mid-twentieth century. A smdl boundary decreeseis necessitated by the demolition of the Pisgeh
Building at the northwest comer of Patton Avenue and Ofis Street on the west Sde of the origina district and
the subssquent congtruction of alarge federa office building in 1994 that is mogtly outsde the district but
occupies aportion of this comer lot.

The Downtown Asheville Higtoric District Boimdary Increese |11, Boundary Decreese and Additional
Documentation medats National Regigter of Historic Flaces Criterion C for architecture. The two arees added
to the locally-significant district contain amix of commercid buildingsin popular architecturd styles
common to twentieth-century towns in westem North Carolinaand severd resdences dating fromthe late
ningteenth or early twentieth century. Most of the new increase areas comprise commercid buildings
congructed between ca 1900 and 1961. The subgtantia number of resources from the 1940sand 1950s
demondrate the growing importance of automobile travel a mid-century and the significant influence of
auto-rdated tourism in Asheville. The Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese 111,
Boundary Decresse and Additional Documentation aso meats Criterion A in the areaof commerce The
physica gopearance of downtown Asheville reflects the economic impact of the Depresson on the city and
the changing pattems of commerce in the post-World Wer |1 period. Greater dgpendence on automobile
transportation not only brought anew type of visitor to Asheville and its environs, but aso encouraged
suburban shopping centers that depleted downtown of ccid retail establishments over time.

The Downtown Asheville Higtoric District Boundary Increese |11, Boundary Decrease and Additional
Documentation extends the end of the period of significancefor the original district and first two boundary
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increasefrom ca 1940 to 1961. Good examples of Commercid Style and Modemigt-influenced commercia
buildingsin the origina digtrict that were previoudy outsde the period of significance are now contributing
resourceswithin the district. The period of significancefor the Boundary Increese ||l areesbeginsca 1890,
with the condruction of the Carmichad-Leonard House a 129 Biltmore Avenue, and continues through
1961 to incdlude anumber of mid-twentieth century resources. Similarly, the period of significance for the
original district and first two boundary increesssis extended through 1961 to recognize numerous mid-
twentieth-century resources. Although development continued after 1961, this development does not meet
Criteria Condderation G for exceptiona significance.

The higtoric contexts and significance for the Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary
Increese |11, Boundary Decreese and Additional Documentation for the period up to 1940 may be found in
"Asheville Higtoric and Architectural Multiple Resources Ared” (NR, 1979). Additional context information
soecificto the devdopment of Ashevillein the period from 1940 through 1961 and architectura contexts for
modem commercid buildings of this period are provided below in Section 8. The Downtown Asheville
Higtoric Digtrict Boundary Increeselll, Boundary Decrease and Additional Documentation incressesthe
number of historic architecturd resourcesin the centra busnessdistrict and documentsthe development of
the city through the mid-twentieth century.

Historical Background and Contexts, ca. 1940-1961

The Downtown Asheville Higtoric District nomination notesthe significant resdentiad Sructures that
were built on Biltmore Avenue, which hed been one of the city's early fashionable residenfid sectionsinthe
ningteenth century. Given its dose proximity to downtown, however, commercia deveopment and
increesed traffic eventualy medeit lessdesrable as aresidentid areaand the large houses were abandoned
or converted to other uses The Carmichad-Leonard Housea 129 Biltmore Avenue, built around 1890, is
the earliest surviving dmcture in this boundary increese The two-story hip-roof brick dwelling features
dample Victorian dements, bracketed eaves and irregular massng. The brick servants quatersand carriage
house remains ganding & the reer of the property. The neighboring Snider-Sawyer-Leonard House, built
aound 1890 & 123 Biltmore Avenue, is atwo-story, three-bay, double-pile brick dwelling with a series of
additions and accretions through the twenfieth century. By the 1940s the Carmichad-Leonard House was
rented as gpartments and the Shider-Sawyer-Leonard Housewas used for Dr. Leonard's anima hospitdl.
Both housss are part of asmal group of ningteenth-century resdences and early-twentieth-century
goatments that reflect the resdenfid history of busy Biltmore Avenue. A short distance north. HoraSorrell
built alarge Colonid Reviva-syle dwelling around 1911 a 100 Biltmore Avenue and opened it to boarders,
which becameincreasingly common in the early twentieth century as the numbers of visitorsand
convalesoants coming to Asheville continued to rise. Ms. Sorrell's house features a sone-veneer feBade, hip
roof and dormers, tracery-syle window sash, and apartialy enclosed wrgparound porch.
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On South French Broad Avenue, southwest of the city center, two frame housesin this boundary
increese survive from another early residential section of downtown. The residential character of South
French Broad Avenue, unlike Grove Strest and Ashdand Avenueto its eest, has not been completely eroded.
Built around 1905, the housea 19 S French Broad Avenue isatwo-story hip-roof Queen Aime-style house
with German wood siding, wood shingles in the geble ends, two-gtory gabled bays, interior brick chimneys,
and an atached wraparound porch on tumed and panded posts. The adjacent house, a boxy two-gtory hip-
roof dwelling, was built around 1924. It features Craftaman-gyle dements including four-over-one double-
hung sseh and an atached ftiU-width porch supported by tgpered podison brick piers. The dwelling, which
hes bean dtered with vinyl sding and areplacement entrance door, hes been usaed for multi-family housing
dnce its condruction.

While Ashevilles growth between 1880 and 1920 wes deedy and occasondly soectacular, the
decade of the 1920swas the mod turbulent inthe city's history. Asheville was on its way to nearly doubling
in populafion during the 1920s—from 28,504 in 1920 to 50,193 in 1930. Building permits, which were
isued in 1919 & a velue of $800,000, climbed to $4.2 million in 1924 and pessed $9 million in 1926.
Parmits were issued for more than $L.3 million in March of 1925 done”™ A group of prominent local
architects who had established themsdvesin Asheville after the tum of the century remained active and were
joined by a second generation—Douglas Ellington, Henry Gaines, Anthony Lord, William Dodge, William
Ead, and Rondd Greene—who were ingrumenta in defining the architectura character of the city. Working
with clients from all over the country, these architects helped to create a sophisticated architecturd paette in
Asheville, more 0 than many other smilar-sized towns. William H. Lord, who came to Asheville from
Syracuse, New York, inthe 1890s, designed the former YWCA a 11 Grove Strest, built 1924-1925, which
congds of atwo-gory, hip-roof Georgian Reviva-style main block with a gymnasium wing located to the
rear. Two pedimented pavilions frame the faBade, which a0 features a soldier-course belt courseand lintels,
dentil cornice, demi-lune windows in the pavilion pediments, classcd entrance surround, and an ellipfical
fanlight over the single-lesf entry.

Architect Charles Parker, who opened his own pracfice in Asheville in 1913, concentrated on
Asheville's lucrative resdenfia market during his career but became best known as the architect of the
Grove Arcade (NR, 1976), a monumental Tudor Gothic-style commercid building congmcted in the late
1920s on the ste of the old Battery Park Hotel. Parker was d 0 respongble for two other non-residenfia
dructures in downtown Asheville. In 1925 he desgned a new citadd for the Savafion Army on Patton
Avenue. The two-dory-plus-basement brick smcture was condmcted in 1926 and trimmed in limestone
with a rudicated besg, ached first-story windows, recessad entrance behind a classcaly-influenced
frontigpiece, and a brick and sone pargpet topped with ums. Around the comer on North French Broad

* Asheville A Guide to the City in the Mountains (Federd Writers Project, 1941), n.p. Catherine W. Bishir, Michagl T. Southem,
and Jennifer F. Martin, A Guide to the Historic Architecture of Wesem North Carolina (Chapel Hill, NC: University of North
Cadlina Press 1999), 263. Doug Reed, "Broad Flan Devised in '25 To Guide City's Growth," ~57ev//e Citizen-Times Bond-
Burning Edition {Innt 24 1976).



NPS Form 10-900-a OMB Approval 1024-001B
(889)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places

Continuation Sheet
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese |11,
Boundary Decrease and Additional Documentation
Section number 8 Page 56 Asheville, Buncombe County, NC

Avenue, Paker designed the Tudoresgue brick French Broad Avenue Methodist Church in 1928, after the
congregation's frame sructure bumed the previous year. The nesatly-detailed building is trimmed with
ssnddone and fegtures a front-gable sanctuary with aprominent square comer tower and hip-roof wing to the
north. With asanctuary designed to accommodate 250 worshipers, church leedersfelt that their new building
was well equipped to handle a growing congregation that had begun with just fourteen members in 1913

Following atremendous period of growth and building in the first decades of the twenfieth century,
Agheville entered the 1930s crippled by bank failures and unyielding municipa debt. Building projects, with
alack of cgpita and tourism dollars, virtually cessed until the latter part of the decede when the effects of the
nationwide economic depresson begen to wane The region benefitted from Presdent Franklin D.
Roosevet's New Ded programs, including the completion of anew civic auditoriumin 1940, desgned by
loca architect Lindsey Gudger and funded in part by the Public Works Administration. On alarger sclethe
completion of the Grest Soky Mountains National Park dong the border of westem North Carolinaad
esdem Tanessee hdped to initiate a gradua retum of tourists to Asheville and the region. Recreationd
facilities congmcted by loca Civilian Consarvatiion Corps in the Pisgah and Nantahda Nationa Forests
drew many visitors from around the region. Construcfion begen in 1935 on the Blue Ridge Parkway, with
locd officias srenuoudy endorsing a route that pessed dose to Asheville. The popular scenic parkway
pressged the new auto-rdated tourism that would bring about significant changes to Asheville's built
environment.* .

As a profession, architects were especidly hard hit by the lack of building projects during the
Depresson. Among Asheville's locd desgners, Douglas Ellington left to work for the federd govemment
on the plaimed community of Greenbelt, Maryland; Anthony Lord mede iron hardware; and William Dodge
opened adlver shop” Henry Gaines declined a position teaching architecture a the University of Idaho to
reman in Asheville and paid the bills sdlling a concentrated gpple juice extract caled "KingsMaglum” for
twelve months " hated every minute of it," he said later.' The number of architects listed in city directories
hed dropped from a pesk of eighteen in 1928 to only three in 1935. That number gradualy climbed back to

N "CharlesN. Paker, Architect, DiesHere," Asheville Citizen (Jduly 31, 1961). Bishir 1999,273-274. "First Methodist Church
OpasFormaly Today,"/di/zevl7le C;r/ze« (November 4, 1928).

' Lou Harshaw, Asheville Mountain Mgesty (Fairview, NC: Bright Mountain Books, Inc., 2007), 273-276. Richard D. Stames,
Creating the Land of the Sky: Tourism and Society in Western North Carolina(Tuscaoosa, AL: University of AlabamaPress,
2005), 117-124.

' Federd Writers Project. JamesL. Brandt, "A Half Century of North Caralina Architecture." North Carolina Architect (December
1964), 19.

Henry |. Gaines, King's Madum (New York: Vantage Press 1972), 48-53.
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an average of around eght from the 1940s through the 1960s."

A few of the old guard, who gayed in Ashevillethrough the 1930s, found it difficuhto compete for
defense indudtry work during World War 1l due the smal sze of their officesand the military's nesd for
rapid desgn and production. Over lunch a the downtown S&W Cafeteria, architects Henry Gaines, William
Dodge, Anthony Lord, Erie Stillwell, and Stewart Rogers, aong with engineer Charles Waddell, decided to
pool their operaions in pursuit of defense work. With their combined organization of about forty people, this
new firm, caled Sx Assodatesfor its Sx original members, won numerous military contracts for large-scde
projects across the southeedt. Following the war, the firm successtaly continued its collaborative work
pursuing new projects for commercid, industrial, medical, and educationd facilitiesand evolved into the
city's predominant architecturd desgn firm."*

While it is eesy to paint a dark picture of Asheville during the Depresson and in the decades
immediately following, it crestes an unfair impresson of the city. Life was indeed difficult for mogst
resdents during the Depresson, but the smple fact is that Asheville's devdlopment for much of twentieth
century after 1930 followed pattems of recovery similar to the rest of the sate and coimtry during the same
period. The city's increasad suburbanization, post-World War |1 housing boom, expanded manufacturing
facilities, and improved trangportation networks reflect broeder trendsthat affected the whole nation. 1t only
paleswhen compared to the incredible growth it experienced in the yearsprior to 1930.

At the end of the 19305 &s the effects of the Depresson waned. Downtown Asheville experienced a
deedy swell of budness activity that continued in the pos-war period. During World Wer |, federd
govenment and military operations brought new life to the city. The Grove Arcade was purchased by the
federd govemment in 1942, a branch of the Army Air Corps took over the City Building (NR, 1976), the
Grove Pak Inn (NR, 1973) sarved as an internment center, Kenilworth lim (NR, 2001) wes converted to a
nava convaescent hospita, and the Battery Park (NR, 1977), George Vanderbilt, and Asheville-Biltmore
hotels were used as atroop distribution centers. After the war, downtown bugnesses began remodeling and
expanding their dores as shoppas once agan filled the dreats In 1944, the Belk chain announced the
opening of a new budget sore on North Lexington Avenue. Pearlman's Railroad Sdvage built a 40,000-
squarefoot addition to its sore on Page Avenue in 1941. A block-long Sears department store opened on
Caxe Avenue in 1948. An edimated 29,000 people atended the opening of Bon Marches new 18,000
squarefoot Bon Marche Store for Homes in downtown. J. C. Panney began constmction in 1954 on its new
51,000-5quare-foot dore on Battery Park Avenue desgned by Sx Assocdiates. Belk's main store on Patton
Avenue was enlarged in 1961. In addition to new construction, long-time downtown businesses, including
the Haza Theater, F. W. Woolworth's,and S H. Kress and Company, renovated their facilities through the

" Agheville City Directories, 1926-1965.
Ganes 79-86. Bishir 1999, 264.
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early 1980s as busnessin downtown Asheville remained brisk.

Capitaizing on Ashevill€'s unique assetsto attract tourism, however, eventudly hdped resurrect the
city. Although the city saw apopulation increase of only 3,000 resdents between 1930 and 1950, lessthan
ten percent of the growth in the preceding two decades, tourism retumed as a magjor component of the local
economy following World Wer 11, but a growing emphads on automobile travel brought new changesin
accommodations and related bus nesses across theregion.™

As vistorsincreasangly traveled to the mountains in their own cars, their visits became shorter and
the areavisited became larger. Thisnew kind of tourist typically favored low-cost lodging and services and
convenient auto-oriented tourist courts, motels, and restaurants built dong the highways, contributing to the
demise of numerous inns and boarding houses that had once sarved the traveling public. The tourist court
became hugdy popular in the early 1950s with more than forty motor courts built in Asheville between
1950 and 1954. Not surprisngly the number of city directory listingsfor hotels begen declining during the
same time, contracting by half from 31in 1948to 16 in 1965

In addition to new lodgings, automobile travel required other services such as filling stations, repair
shops, and parts dedears. |n the post-war period these services began pushing inward toward the city center as
the fashionable resdences were increasingly abandoned in favor of newer suburban neighborhoods. Three
savice dations were built on Biltmore Avenuein an areaonce filled with nineteenth-century dwellings. The
three dations were eech rendered in an Art Deco or Art Modeme-inspired style with stylized geometric
forms, smooth surfaces, rounded comers, decorative banding or "goead lines,” and modem materids. The ca
1M1 GulfPride Sarvice Station a 91 Biltmore Avenue fegtures a recently restored smooth stucco exterior,
gazed gaage bay doors, glassblock entrance sddights, ard smooth rounded comas and parapet.
OKédley's Amoco Savice Station a 111 Biltmore Avenue, erected around 1944, features a stuccoed
exterior with decorative banding and indudes a brick reer wing that housed an independently run repair
shop. At thetime of their constmction, both O'Kelley's Amoco and the ca. 1994 Ledford & Shoameker Esso
Station a 76 Biltmore Avenue were built on the Ste of recently demolished boarding houses John Campbdll
opened a used car dedeaship a 180 Paton Avenue in the early 1950s The long rectangular building is
punctuated by aseriesof garage bays onitseedt elevation.

Increased degpendance on automobiles as a primary mode of transportation necesstated other design
dements that begen gopearing with grester frequency in the post-war period. The nesd for parking was
manifestin building dtes and the crestion of both surface lots and parking structures. Built in 1961 Nu-Way

" Agheville MRA. Agheville Citizen (July 23, 1941 and Novamba 1, 1969). Chess 163-165.

Hadaw, 280288,

Sames 135136, Adweville City Directories, 1935-1966. Thefirst"motor courts' ae listed in the 1963 city directory, but the
192 directary is nat avalade in the athawise conplete callection & Pacdk Memarid Library.
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Cleenasa 167 Paton Avenue offered convenient parking infront of and dong the eest Sde of the building
by locating the dructure to the rear comer of the Site. Parking became such an issue in downtown Asheville,
& in many other cities, in the late-twentieth century that the city erected its own parking sructures to eese
on-dreet congedtion, atract merchants and visitors to downtown, and potentialy generate revenue.

Commercid architecture deveoped in new ways following the Depresson due, in part, to economic
condderaions, new stylistic influences, and functional changes in retail shopping. Through the 1930s ad
190s commercid buildings continued the traditions of the Commercid Style with primarily one- and two-
dory brick smctures with some acoat materid or decorative brickwork to enliven the faBade. With the
tightened economy and materid shortages during World War 11, much of the embd lishment was either toned
down significantly or removed dtogether. Even commercid smctures influenced by the vibrant Art Deco
syle, which enjoyed surprising popularity in Asheville, took on amore streamlined and stylized gppearance
in the pog-war period.”™

Modemist design, particularly the International Style and its stripped planar surfaces, exerted an
increeang influence beginning in the 1940s Architects in westem North Carolina experienced the new
movemant directly as leading practitioners Water Gropius and Marcel Breuer came to the experimenta
Black Mountain College in the Svannanca Valey inthe late 1930s Through Black Mountain College, Dr.
Sporinza Wiezenblatt engeged Breuer to desgn an Intemational Style housefor her neer Beaver Lake in north
Asheville. Catherine Bishir destribes the resulting done and glass dwelling as "an early statement of the
modemist regiondism that gained wider ue after World War 11" Anthony Lord served as supervisng
architect for the Wiezenblatt House

Commercid architecture in Asheville, however, generdly reduced the tenets of the Intemationa
Style to its mog basic form with a lack of omament, geometric volumes and forms, windows that are
continuations of the wall surface (es opposad to a hole in the wall), and cantilevered projections. Loca
architects smilarly adapted other modem design idedls to better fit the mountainous climate and topography
of Asheville. The firm of Sx Assodaes desgned an expressve modem office building for the Public
Sarvice Company of North Carolinaa 168 Patton Avenue in 1961. The faBadeis a full-height glass curtain
wall but the 9de devations feature Y-shgped concrete pods supporting inverted pyramida roof springers
and brick wall pands The dructura geometry cregtes diamond-shaped and triangular windows within their
openings and extendsthe ftiU length of the Sde devation abovethe brick wall pands The Foneer Building
a 4044 N. French Broad Avenue, built in 1956, is composed of intersecting blocks forming a " T" with

Swam, 96. Clay Griffith, Douglas D. Ellington: Art Deco In Asheville. 1925-1931. (MA Thess, University of Virginia, 1993).
30-42. Co

Bishir 1999,284.

* |bid., 304-305. "Roundtable: Today's Asheville," North CarolinaArchitect (July/August 1978), 34-35.
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vertica dructura members forming the bays, banded windows over smooth pands, and dightiy recessed
planes. Two bays of the front block a the south end of the building extend over an entrance driveway, which
mns dongdde the gem of the " T" to arear parking area”

Theincreasing reliance on persond automobiles for transportation that ultimately generated the need
for drive-thru windows began in the mid-twentieth century. Among the automobile€'s many repercussons in
Asheville, decentrdization of retail shopping had a treamendous impact on both downtown Asheville and the
surrounding aress of the city. Locd entrepreneur George Coggins built the first modem shopping center,
Wedgate, on the west dde of the French Broad River in 1956. The shopping center was designed by Six
Asodaes. Acocessd by the recently completed Smoky Park Bridge, which carried Patton Avenue westward
over theriver, Wedtgate Regiond Shopping Center, as it was formally known, was anchored by a full-sized
department gore and included a cafeteria, branch bank, dmg store, and barber shop—thirty sores in all.
Pahgps mogt importantly, Wedgate Regiond Shopping Center offered "excdlent parking facilities,” that
condgted of avad surface parking la/*"

The congruction of Wesgate signded the beginning of downtown flight in the sscond half of the
twentieth centtiry as other shopping canters were built dong the main arteries into the city—Hendersonville
Road, Merrimon Avenue, and Tunnd Road. The commercid exodus from downtown, especidly among the
large depatmeant dores that drew large numbers of people to downtown for shopping, culminated in 1973
with the opening of Asheville Mall on a62-acre ste on Tuime Road eedt of dovmtown. Both the Belk and
Ivey's depatment dores opened new dores a the mall with no decison about the future of their downtown
locations, both stores dosed soon after the mall opened. Sears moved to the mall from its downtown Coxe
Avenue location. Woolworth's rdocated from Haywood Street. The extenson of commercia devel opment
outward from Asheville left a lasting imprint on the city and unintentionally paved the way for large-scae
redevd opment & the end of the twentieth century.”™

On Aly 1, 1976, the City of Asheville held abond buming ceremony a Thomas Wolfe Auditorium
to recognize the decadeslong effort to retireits 1920sera municipa debt, which had stifled public building
projects and economic devdopment snce the Grest Depresson. In relation to the physica fabric of
Asheville, the city's sevare debt gpared much of its unique architectura heritage from the widespread urban
renewd that adversdy affected 0 many other cities aoross the country. On the other hand, the city was
experiencing a long, dow decline of its public facilifies and infrastructure, with numerous abandoned
buildings, shuttered downtown busnesses, and vagrancy due to a lack of investment, especidly downtown.

" Caherine W. Bishir, North Carolina Architecture (Chapd Hill, NC: University of North Carolina Press 451-454. Marcus
Whiffen, American Architecture Since 1870: A Guide To The Styles (Cambridge, MA: MIT Press, 1988), 241-246.
Nan K. Chesg, Asheville: A History (Jefferson, NC: McFarland & Company, Inc., 2007), 165-167. Harshaw, 315-317.

A 1pbid. Chess, 166-170.
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Among the aress of the city experiencing the grestest impacts of urban renewd programs, the eest end of
downtown hed large swaths of historic buildings deared in the late 1960s and early 1970s The cross-town
expressivay, which was congmcted on the north sde of downtown inthe late 1950s terminated a Charlotte
Srest and fiinneled traffic dong College Street to the tunne through Beaucatcher Mountain. The North
Carolina Depatment of Transportation's proposd to extend the expressivay through the mountain by way of
an open cut brought further physica changesto the eest Sde of town. Even with its crippling municipal debt
repaid, Asheville's dedline reached its nadir in the early 1980s due to the effects of a nationwide economic
recesson and high unemployment.

The Downtown Asheville Higtoric Disfrict was listed in the National Regiser around this time.
Busness ad civic leedas property owners, and a motivated group of nascent preservationiss sought
solutions to the plight of downtown and historic resources. The transformation from a largely abandoned,
boarded-up downtown in the late 1970s and early 1980sto a popular, nationally recognized destination by
the mid-1990s began dowly but quickly gathered steam. The revitdization of downtown Asheville snce the
historic district was listed hes resulted in numerous changesto the historic fabric of the dty—"bath positive
and negative. Of the 257 resources included inthe Downtown Asheville Historic Disfrict, more than eighty
buildings have been substantidly rehabilitated snce 1979, representing a $90 million investment the
downtown area. Asheville ranks sscond among North Carolina cities for the number of completed certified
rehabilitation projects and the amount of qualifying rehabilitation expenditures. Given its position as the
economic, cultural, and socid center of wetem North Carolinag, downtown Asheville plays acritical rolein
the regiond economy and satsan example for other communitiesto follow.M

"N o' | N eooe .y

" Reed, Asheville Citizen-Times Bond-Burning Edition (June 28, 1976). Meacham, Asheville Citizen (July 2, 1976). Chess, 177-
182 Harshaw, 316-317.

RebeccaHolton, "A Profitable Pest, A Pricdess Future: The Economic Impact of North Carolinas Historic Tax Credit,”
(Report, University of North Carolinaa Chapd Hill, 2008), 7-8. The mgjor agpectsof Ashevill€e's late twentieth century
resurgence ae nicely recounted in chapters9 and 10 of Chesa The chgpters are tellingly titled "L umbering Phoenix" and
"Hoppin' and Poppin'."
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Geographica Data

Verbal Boundary Description

The Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Incresse 111, Boundary Decreese and Additional

Documentation conggts of two sgparate increese sectionsthat are ddinested by a heavy black dashed line on
the accompanying mep a a scae of one inch egtids gpproximately 160 feet. The Boimdary Increese extends
the district from the south boundary of the Biltmore Avenue Amendment (Boundary Increase I) further south
on both ddes of Biltmore Avenue. It ds0 extendsthe origina district from its west boimdary aong portions
of French Broad Avenue, Grove Street, and Paiton Avenue. The Boundary Increase contains gpproximeately

935 axestotd in the two sgparate arees The Boundary Decrease removes one parcd of the demolished
building & 129 Patton Avenue. . %

Boundary Justification

The nominated boundary for the Dovmtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Incresse |11, Boundary

Deoresse and Additional Documentation includes all of the historic resources contiguous with the existing

historic district and assodaed with downtown's continuing development in the early- and mid-twentieth

century. The boundary increase encompessss two aress of additiona resourcesthat are Smilar in scae, form,
and mateids and represent the evolution of popular architectura styles through the district's period of

sgnificance. The Boundary Decreese removes one parcd of a demolished building that now contains an

entrance plaza and smdl portion of a large federd office building, constructed in 1994, that is Stuated

mogtly outsde the ditrict.

The extent of the boundary incresse arees wiss largdly dictated by changes in character of the devel opment
around downtown and the presence of modem condtruction or open, surface parking lots. To the northeest
and esdt of the higtoric district and boundary increese are large swaths deared by urban renewd inthe late
1960s and 1970s and modem changes to the dredt pattems. To the south of the district and boundary
increece is a gredtle presance of modem condruction comingled with the scattered surviving historic
resources. Remnants of tum-of-the-twentieth-century residential development lie beyond the boundary
increece on the wet dde of the district and are mixed with late-twentieth-century commercid buildings
dong the Paton Avenue corridor. To the north. Intersate 240 forms a dear physical and visua border
between downtown to the south and the resdentid neighborhoods and commercid corridors that lieto the
north.
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Photograph Index

All photogrgphs of the Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese|1l by Clay Griffith of
Acme Presarvation Sarvicesin October and November 2010. Digital imageskept at the Survey and Planning
Branch of North Carolina State Historic Presarvation Office in Raleigh, North Carolina.

"l ? . SVA \

1 Camichad-Leonard House, 129 Biltmore Avenue - view to wet

2. (former) CocaCola Bottling Plant, 90 Biltmore Avenue - view to eest

3. Gulf Pride Sarvice Station, 91 Biltmore Avenue - view to west

4. Skadand Rollerdome, 101 Biltmore Avenue - obliquefront view to west

5. Biltmore Avenue, sregtscape view to northwest

6. (former) YWCA, 11 Grove Street - oblique front view to southwest

7.  Fonex Building, 40-44 N. French Broad Avenue - oblique front view to northwest

8. French Broad Avenue Methodist Church, 14 N. French Broad Avenue - view to west
9. House 19 S Fench Broad Avenue - oblique front view to west

10. Chrigian & Missonary Alliance Church, 12-6 S French Broad Avenue - view to eest

11. (former) Sdvation Army Building, 175 Patton Avenue-view to north
12. Public Sarvice Co. of NC Office, 168 Patton Avenue - oblique front view to southwest
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August 31, 2011 S07 A1l

State Historic Preservation Office HIS;|}f€?MMﬂOF—;CEI
Office of Archives and History

4610 IViail Service Center

Raleigh, NC 27699-4610

Dear Mr. Crow:

Bowers, Ellis & Watson, LLC is formally objecting to having our building listed on the National
Register of Historic places.

We obiject for a variety of reasons, first and foremost, our loss of personal control and negative
financial impact due to substantially more bureaucratic authority, added complexity, and further
governmental restrictions in an already highly over-regulated city such as Asheville. As architects, we
have dealt with this in the past, and having first-hand experience in the process, will not agree to our
building being included.

STEVEN W. BOWERS AIA
JOHN S. ELLIS AlA

W. MICHAEL WATSON AA After reading the nine sheet fact list which was attached to your letter, we have not been able
to find a single compelling reason to accept this proposal. The building is of minor cultural significance.
It is not accessible to people with physical disabilities and is certainly not of the highest and best use of
the property.

168 PATTON AVENUE

ASHEVILLE. NC 28801 Fact Sheet two lists four "Criteria for Evaluation" used as a guide by state and federal officials

to determine whether a building is suitable for the National Register. If those four criteria are applied to

828/236.9992 our building, the answer to each guideline is a definite "no".

Please remove our building from the nomination list immediately.

facsimile:
828/236-9996 Sincerely,

| BOWERS, ELLIS & WATSON, LLC A
e-mail:
info (Sbewarch.com ACKNOWLEDGEMY ANDAGMEDTOby the Undersigned's authorized representative as of the dayof .~2720

web site: ! CPu _A

www.bewarch.com
and notary public: 1" /

Signature of Notary Public

Notary Public/Notary Seal
My Commission Expires:

The Honorable Terry Bellamy, Mayor

The Honorable David Gantt, Chair, Board of County Commlsslonere,p,_|,. + HUEBNER

French Broad Trading Cooperative COMMISSION EXPIRES 1-31-12
Sycamore Partners LP

Mr. David C. Hayes

Lighteart LLC

Land of Sky Leasing Corp. - c/o Public Interest Projects o >
Andy's Heating and Air Conditioning Co. ,

McNorthup Properties LLC . o'

137 Biltmore Associates " L.

Asheville Broad Center LLC

Mr. Devere C. Lentz

Echo Mountain Studios LLC

Mr. Brian Peterson

Mr. & Mrs. Russell R. Rhodes

Asheville Gospel Tabernacle ,
Almack Corporation - ,
Silver Foxx Investments LLC :
Mr. & Mrs. Clarence E. Parker

Mr. & Mrs. Michael W. Byer

t:\BEW\HistoricPreservation



September 6, 2011

Al mack Corporation
414 S Main St. b, e or
Hendersonville, N C 28792 . .

State Historic Office

Dear M. Crow,

| am objecting tohaving ny building listed on the National
Regi ster of Historic places.

This building was built i n 1960 with a nodern design..
| cannot see how this buiding could have any historical
significance. '

Pl ease renove ny building from thenomnation |ist immediately,
Sincerely,
John Perkins, president

RE 167 Patton Ave.
Asheville, N C

Signed, sworn t o and subscribed beforetfehe
undersigned witness and notary public the

_ piinFYISAS/pA
Siglrature of Notary Public RAVATR

N

Not ary Public/Notary Seal mn tp-
M/ Com ssion Expires # \ el



North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources

Officeof Archivesand History

Beverly Eaves Purdue, Govemor
LindaA. Calide, Saxday Jeffrey J CGrow, Deputy Ssoeay

September 12, 2011

W. Michad Watson, AlA

Seven W. Bowers, AlA

John S Ellis, AIA

Bowers Ellis & Watson Architects, PA
168 Paton Avenue

Asheville, NC 28801

Re: Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese |11, Asheville, Buncombe County

Dear Messs. Watson, Bowers, and Ellis;

We havereceived your notarized letter of objection to the nomination of the proposed Downtown
Asheville Historic District Boundary IncreeseHI to the National Regider of Historic Places. As a
property owner within the district expanson, you havethe right to object to the nomination. \We will
present your letter to the Nationa Regiger Advisory Committee (NRAC) a its meeting on October 13,
2011, when it congders the eligibility of the district for listing in the National Regigter.

The function of the Committee isto advise me, as State Historic Preservation Officer, whether a property

or digtrict being consdered for nomination gopearsto meet the criteriafor listing inthe Nationa Regider.
The committee besesits decison on the architectural and historical significanceof the property or district

under condderation.

| would like to teke this opportunity to respond to severd points raised inyour letter and to share this
information with al of the parties who received a copy of it. The Downtown Asheville Historic District
Boundary Increese is being presented to the committee as an important and cohesive collection of over
twenty historic buildings dong Patton Avenue, Biltmore Avenue, and adjacent Sde sreets In the
nomination, the distinctive 1961 modemist Public Service Company of North Carolina Office building a
168 Patton Avenue, which you own, is documented for its contribution to the architectura significance of
the higtoric digtrict expandgon areaand downtown Asheville as awhole. Although private property owners
do havetheright to officially object, they do not have the authority to request the removal of their

properties from congideration.

Listing in the Nationa Regiger places no requirements, obligations, or expectations on owners of private
property. It does not require presant or fiiture owners of a property to make any changesto the property,
or even to presarveit. Properties listed inthe National Register are not required to be open to the public.

MAILING ADDRESS LOCATION
4610 Mail Sarvice Certter Teephone 919-807-7280 109 Eadt Jones Street
Reeigh, NC 27699-4610 Fax 919-733-8807 Reeigh, NC 27601



Messs Watson, Bowers and Ellis
September 12, 2011
Pege 2

The historic designation does not mandate any oversight by this office or the federal govemment of the
actions of a private property owner. Dozens of property owners in the current Downtown Asheville

Higtoric District (desgnated in 1979), havetaken advantage of the rehabilitation tax credit program,
which isonly available to National Register-listed buildings. A brochure about this program is endosd

for your information.

The National Register weas cregted by Congressin 1966 as a planning mechaniam to ensurethat federa
agendestake higoric buildings and neighborhoods into consderation in the course of their programs ad
activities, and to provide incentives, such as investment tax credits, to private owners who are attempting
to stabilize and improve older buildings and neighborhoods. Since 1966, over 2,700 placesin North
Carolina have been listed in the National Regiger, including more than 450 historic digtricts in
communitiesal acrossthe sate, encompassing thousands of historic buildings. Also, National Register
designation should not be confused with loca historic district designation, which is strictly a local zoning
maiter, unrelated to the National Regigter, that does entail adherenceto desgn guideines when changes
ae madeto abuilding. No portion of the Asheville Downtown Historic District and the proposed

boundary increase arees are inalocally zoned higtoric didtrict.

If amajority of ownersina proposed National Register district expanson object to the nomination, under
federa law the district cannot be listed in the Nationa Regider of Historic Places However, if the
Committee determines that the district gopearsto medt criteriafor listing inthe Nationa Regider, | an
required to forward the nomination to the Kegper of the National Regiger in the National Park Sarvice,
U.S. Depatment of the Interior, for his detennination of the district'seligibility for listing. If the kegper
determines that the didtrict iseligible, it would not be listed but it would be subject to the protections
under law for registered historic properties as they gpply to the activities of federal agences Such
protections do not affect the activities of gate, local, or private entities or individuals unless such
activities are subject to federd licensing or receive federa funding. Without listing, owners will not be
eigiblefor preferentia federa income tax benefits associated with the National Regider unless their

buildings are individually listedin the Regider.

If lessthan amajority of owners objects to the nomination, and if the Committee and | agreethat the
digtrict gopears to be digible for listing, the nomination will be submitted to the Kegper with
recommendations for listing. A property may not be removed from the boundaries of a district a an

owner's request.

If amajority of ownersof aproposed historic district object to nomination, and the district is subsequently

determined eligible for the Nationa Regider, it may be consdered for actud listing in the Nationa
Regiger in thefiiture should a majority of owners submit notarized letters of support for listing.



Messs Watson, Bowes ad BUis ' ' B v
Sgpamber 12,2011 ir . ' . .
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If you have questions about the National Regider, please contact Claudia R. Brown, Survey and Nationa
Regiger Branch Head & 919/807-6573, or Ann V. Swallow, Nationa Register Coordinator, a 919/807-

6587.

Sincerdy,

Jeffrey IV row
Sae Historic Presarvation Officer

JC/avs
end.

cc.  TheHonorable Terry Bellamy, Mayor
The Honorable David Gantt, Chair, Board of County Commissioners
French Broad Trading Cooperative
Sycamore Patners LP
David C. Hayes .
Lighteart LLC
Land of Sky Leasing Corporation- ¢/o Public Interests Projects
Andy's Heating and Air Conditioning Company
McNorthup Properties LLC
137 Biltmore Assodiates
Asheville Broad Center LLC .
Devere C. Lentz

- Echo Mountain SudiosLLC ? : :
Brian Peterson N- " -1
Mr. and Mrs. RusHll R. Rhodes
Asheville Gogpd Tabernede
Almack Corporation
Silver Foxx InvesmentsLLC
Mr. and Mrs. Clarence E. Parker
Mr. and Mrs. Michael W. Byer
Stacy Merten, Director, Historic Resources Commission of Asheville and Buncombe

County



North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources

Beverly Eaves Purdue, Govemor Officeof Archivesand History
LindaA. Calide, Secretary Jeffrey J. Crow, Deputy
Secretary

September 14, 2011

John T. Perkins, Presdent
Almack Corporation

414 South Main Stregt
Hendersonville, NC

Re 167 Paton Avenue, Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increase, Bimcombe County

Dear Mr. Perkins: .- /
We have received your September 6, 2011, letter of objection to the nomination of property within the proposed
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increese to the National Register of Historic Places. Asa property
owner within the digtrict boundary increese areg, you havethe right to object to the nomination.

| have endosed information about the procedure for objectingto National Regigter listing. Flesse note in the
soond section that aletter notarized by anotary public certifying your ownership of property in the district is
required for your objection to be legally binding. |f you wish to officially object to the listing, pleese send a
notarized letter to the Sate Historic Preservation Officer a the address shown in the fact shedt,

To dae, you are the ssoond property owner who hes objected to the listing of property inthe Downtown Asheville
Historic District Boundary Increeseinthe National Regigter. Although private property owners do have theright to

officially object, they do not have the authority to request the removd of their properties from consideration.

The Downtown Asheville Historic District was originally listedin the National Regiger in 1979. The current
nomination being presented to the committee meeting is are-examination of the district after thirty-two years. In it
the higtory of downtown Asheville is documented through 1961, and the 1961 dry deanersbuilding & 167 Patton
Avenueis a contributing historic building in the areabeing proposed for inclusion in the digtrict.

The National Register Advisory Committee will congider the digtrict for listing inthe Nationa Regider a its
meeting on October 13. The function of the Committee isto advise me, as State Historic Preservation Officer,
whether aproperty or district being considered for nomination gopearsto med the criteriafor listingin the National
Regiger. The committee besesitsRlecision on the architggturd and listorical significanceof the pr or district

under condderation. -

Listing inthe Nationa Regiger placesno requirements, obligations, or expectations on owners of private property.
It doesnot require present or future owners of aproperty to make any changesto the property, or even to preserve
it. TheNationa Regiger was crested by Congressin 1966 as a planning mechanism to enaurethat federd agencies

MAILING ADDRESS LOCATION
4610 Mail Savice Center Teephone 919-807-7280 109 Eadt Jones Strest
Raeigh, NC 27699-4610 Fax 919-733-8807 Raeigh, NC 27601



Mr. John T. Pakins
September 14, 2011

Pege 2

take higtoric buildings and neighborhoods into consideration in the course of their programs and activities, andto
provide incentives, such as investment tax credits, to private owners who are attempting to stabilize and improve
older buildings and neighborhoods. Since 1966, over 2,700 placesin North Carolina have been listed in the
Nationa Regiger, including more than 460 historic digtrictsin communitiesdl acrossthe sate, encompassing
thousands of higtoric buildings. Also, National Register designation should not be confused with local historic
digtrict designation, which is strictly alocal zoning matter unrdated to the National Regigter.

If a majority of ownersinaproposed National Regiger district object to the nomination, under federd law the
digtrict cannot be listed in the Nationa Regigter of ffistoric Haces However, if the Committee determines that the
district gopearsto met criteriafor listing in the National Regidter, | an required to forward the nomination to the
Kegper of the Nationd Regiger in the Nationa Park Service, U.S. Depatment of the Interior, for his determination
of the digtrict'seligibihty for listing. 1f the kegper datermines that the digtrict is ehgible, it would not be listed but it
would be subject to the protections under law for registered historic properties as they apply to the activities of
federa agencies. Such protections do not affect the activities of Sate, local, or private entities or individuals unless
quch activities are subject to federd licensing or receive federa funding. Without listing, owners will not be eigible
for preferential federd income tax benefits assodated with the Nationa Regiger unless their buildings are

individualy listed in the Regigter.

If lessthan amajority of owners objects to the nomination, and if the Committee and | agree thet the district
appearsto be digible for listing, the nomination will be submitted to the Kegper with recommendations for ligting.
A property may not be removed from the boundaries of a digtrict a an owner's request.

If amgjority of ownersof a proposed historic district object to nomination, and the district is subsequently
determined digible for the Nationa Regider, it may be consdered for actud listing in the Nationa Regiger in the
future should a majority of owners submit notarized letters of support for listing.

If you have quedions about the Nationa Regigter, please contact ClaudiaBrown, Survey and National Regiger
Branch Heed a 919-807-6573, or Ann V. Swalow, Nationa Regiger Coordinator, & 919-807-6587.

Sincerdly,

Jeffrey J.
Sate Historic Presarvatiion Officer

JJClavs
end.



RECEIVED 2280

NOV1 8 21

North CarolinaDepartment of Cultural Resources

Sate Historic Preservation Office
Ramona M. Bartos, Administrator

Bevcrl) Eaves Pardue, Governor Office of Archivesand History
l,inda \. Calide, Saxrday Division of Historica Resources
Jeflrcyd. Crow, Deputy Sexrdary David Brook, Director

November 14, 2011

Ms. Carol Shull, Keeper

National Regiger of Historic Places
National Park Service

LS. Department of the Interior

1201 Eye Street NW (2208) Eighth Floor
Woashington, D.C. 20005

Re  Bray-Paschd Farm- Chatham County
West Sdma Historic District - Johnston County
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increase 3, Boundary Decrease
and Additional Documentation - Buncombe County
Clough H. Rice House - Henderson County

Dear Ms. Shull:

Enclosed are the nominations for the above-referenced properties and historic districts to be Uded in the
National Regiger of Historic Places.

We trust youwill find the nominations to be in order. If you have any questions please call Ann Swalow,
919.807.6587.

Sincerdy,

Jeffrey].
State Historic Preservation Officer

yjCljct: enclosures

Liicarion: 119 Fig Jones Sret, Rdeich NC 27601 Mailing Address: 4617 Mall Savice Canter, Rdeigh NC 27699-461" Teleplionc/Fax; (019) 807-657/0/807-6599



September 21, 2011

State Historic Preservation Office
4610 IVfaii Service Center
Raieigii, NC 27699-4610

Dear IVir. Crow:

Asiieviiie Broad Center, LLCis formally objecting to having my building
listed on the National Register of Historic Piaces.

| object for a variety of reasons, first and foremost, our loss of personal
control and negative financial impact due to substantially more bureaucratic
authority, added complexity, and further govemmental restrictions in an
already highly over-regulated city such as Asheville. As a long time property
owner | have dealt with this in the past and having first-hand experience in
the process, will not agree to my building being included.

After reading the fact listwhich was attached to your letter, 1 have not
been able to find a single compelling reasdn to acceptthis proposal.

Fact Sheet two lists four "Criteria for Evaluation" used as a guide by
state and federal officials to determine whether a building is suitable for the
National Register. If those four criteria are applied to my building, the
answer to each guideline is a definite '"no".

Please remove my building from the nomination list immediately.

Sincerely,

Asheville Broad Center,LLC
Member-Larry N. Bane

Telephone 954-557-4833 Email: banereal@bellsouth.net

STATE OFUCKXtt "A"UAJiCQUHTW nP ANcofAn

Signed before me on this day f(M\4Q'""AnANIA
of-S"iO: POU by B5A~M>Q>rlJ:fPQ<”re>0n \ ""UBLAAA LA

foolery Public ~ -~ J ~ - A NMegTANA ' 'NANSSAO0\SA 2N



North Carolina Department of Cultural Resources

Beverly Eaves Purdue, Govemor Office of Archives and History
Linda A. Calide, Secretary Jeffrey J. Crow, Deputy
Secretary

September 27, 2011

Asheville Broad Center, LLC

cdo Lary N. Bane . .
1881 NE 26* Street, Suite 212H o

Fort Lauderdde, FL 33305

Re Fionear Building, 40-44 North French Board Avenue, Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary
Increase, Bimcombe County

Dear Mr. Bane

We havereceived your September 21, 2011, letter of objection to the nomination of property within the proposed
Downtown Asheville Historic District Boundary Increaseto the National Regigter of Historic Places. As a property
owner within the district boundary increase area, you havethe right to object to the nomination.

To date, you are the fifth property owner who hes objected to the listing of property in the Downtown Asheville
Historic District Boundary Increeseinthe Nationd Regigter. Although private property owners do have theright to
officially object, they do not have the authority to request the removal of their propertiesfi-om consideration.

The Downtown Asheville Historic District wes originally listed inthe Nationa Register in 1979. The current
nomination being presented to the committee medting is are-examination of the digtrict after thirty-two years. Init
the history of downtown Asheville is documented through 1961, and modemist Pioneer Building a 40-44 North
French Board Avenue which was congtructed m 1956 is a contributing historic building inthe areabeing proposed

for inclusion in the district.

TheNationa Regiser Advisory Committee will condder the district for listing in the National Regiger a its
meeting on October 13. The function of the Committee isto advise me, as State Historic Preservation Officer,

whether aproperty or district being considered for nomination gppearsto med the criteriafor listing inthe Nationa
Regigter. The committee beases its decison on the architectura and historical significance of the property or district

under congideration.
Listing in the Nationa Register places no requirements, obligations, or expectations on owners of private property.

It doeshot require present or future owners of a property to make any changes to the property, or even to presarve
it. The Nationa Register was cregted by Congressin 1966 as aplanning mechaniam to ensurethat federal agendes

Ny
MAILING ADDRESS LOCATION
4610 Mail Savice Center Tdephone 919-807-7280 109 Eadt Jones Strest
919-733-8807 Rdeigh, NC 27601

Raleigh, NC 276994610 Fax



Mr. Larry N. Bane
September 27, 2011

Pege 2

take higtoric buildings and neighborhoods into consideration in the course of their programs and activities, and to
provide incentives, such as investment tax credits, to private owners who are attempting to stabilize and improve
older buildings and neighborhoods. Since 1966, over 2,700 placesin North Carolinahave been listed in the
National Regiger, including more than 460 historic districtsin communities all acrossthe sate, encompassing
thousands of higtoric buildings. Also, Nationa Regiger designation should not be confused with locd historic
digtrict designation, which is gtrictly alocal zoning matter unrdated to the National Regigter.

If amgjority of ownersinaproposed Nationa Regiger district object to the nomination, under federd law the
digtrict cannat be listed in the National Regider of Higtoric Places. However, if the Committee detemiines thet the
district gopears to meet criteriafor listing in the Nationa Regiger, | am required to forward the nomination to the
Kegper of the National Regigter in the National Pak Service, U.S. Department of the Interior, for his determination
of the digtrict'seligibility for hsting. If the kegper determines thet the district iseligible, it would not be listed but it
would be subject to the protections under law for registered historic properties as they apply to the activities of
federd agendes Such protections do not affect the activities of state, local, or private entities or individuals unless
auch activities are subject to federd licensing or receive federd funding. Without listing, owners will not be digible
for preferential federal income tax benefits assodated with the National Register unlesstheir buildings are

individualy listed in the Regider.

If lessthan amagjority of owners objectsto the nomination, and if the Committee and | agreethat the digtrict
aopears to be digible for listing, the nomination will be submitted to the Keegper with recommendations for liting.
A property may not be removedfi-omthe boundaries of a district at an owner'srequest.

If amgjority of ovraers of a proposed historic district object to nomination, and the district is subsequently
determined digible for the National Regiger, it may be consdered for actud listing in the National Regigter in the
future should amajority of owners submit notarized letters of support for listing.

If you have questions about the Nationd Regigter, pleese contact ClaudiaBrown, Survey and Nationd Regigter
Branch Heed a 919-807-6573, or Ann V. Swallow, Nafiona Regiger Coordinator, a 919-807-6587.

Sincerdy,

Jeffrey J. Crow”™J
Sate Historic Presarvation Officer

JC/avs



